
                                                                                        
 

 

 

Executive Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
This meeting will be held both in person in Council Chambers at 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort, 

and virtually through Zoom. 

Monday, December 06, 2021 
2:00 PM 

AGENDA 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
  PAUL SOMMERVILLE, CHAIRMAN   LAWRENCE MCELYNN   
  ALICE HOWARD      STU RODMAN  
   MARK LAWSON 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM NOVEMBER 1, 2021 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the 
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will 
address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the 
use of profane, abusive, or obscene language) 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

7. DISCUSSION OF 2022 PENNY SALES TAX REFERENDUM 

 
8. APPROVAL OF ARPA PROJECT LIST RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
9. CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE REDISTRICTING THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
 
10. A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE BEAUFORT COUNTY FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE POLICY 
 

1



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

11. A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING FEDERAL FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE REIMBURSABLE GRANT 
PROGRAMS 

 
12. DISCUSSION REGARDING THE ELEMENTS OF THE RULES AND PROCEDURES HANDBOOK 
 
13. REQUEST TO PURCHASE CAT MODEL 120 MOTORGRADER 
 
14. APPOINTMENT OF CAROLYN M. BANNER, PH.D. TO THE BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES WITH AN EXPIRATION DATE OF 2025. 
 
15. APPOINTMENT OF ANGELA D. SIMMONS, PH.D. TO THE BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES FOR APARTIAL 1ST TERM WITH AN EXPIRATION DATE OF 2023 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

 

16. PURSUANT TO S.C. CODE SEC. 30-4-70(A) RECEIPT OF LEGAL ADVICE WHERE THE ADVICE RELATES TO A 
PENDING, THREATENED OR POTENTIAL CLAIM (PROSPECT ROAD) OR OTHER MATTERS COVERED BY THE 
ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE (BCSD INTEREST IN FISCAL AUTONOMY) 

17. MATTERS ARISING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

18. ADJOURNMENT 

2



 

 

 

Executive Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls 

Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 

Monday, November 1, 2021 
2:30 PM 

MINUTES 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Chairman Sommerville called the meeting to order at 2:30 PM 
 
PRESENT 
Committee Chairman D. Paul Sommerville 
Council Member Joseph F. Passiment 
Council Member Mark Lawson 
Council Member Brian Flewelling 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 
Council Member Stu Rodman 
Council Member Chris Hervochon 
Council Member Howard 
Council Member York Glover 
 
ABSENT 
Council Member Gerald Dawson 
Council Member Logan Cunningham 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Committee Chairman Sommerville led the Pledge of Allegiance 

3. FOIA 

Committee Chairman Sommerville stated public notice of this meeting had been published, posted, and 
distributed in compliance with the SC FOIA Act. 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion: It is moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Council Member Glover to approve the 
agenda. The motion was approved without objection.  
 

3

Item 5.



Executive Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion: It is moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Rodman to approve the 
September 7, 2021 minutes. The motion was approved without objection. 
 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS  

No Citizen Comments 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 

 
 
 

7. CONSIDERATION OF THE APPROVAL OF MONDAY, DECEMBER 27, 2021, AS AN ADDITIONAL CHRISTMAS 
HOLIDAY FOR THE BEAUFORT COUNTY EMPLOYEES. 

Motion: It is moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Howard to approve the 
consideration of Monday, December 27, 2021, as an additional Christmas Holiday for the Beaufort County 
Employees. The motion was approved without objection. Forward to Council for approval. 

Discussion: 

- Make it a permanent change/holiday whenever the Holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday.  
- Administration will propose a three-day holiday during Christmas the next time the schedule is 

brought forth to council.  
 

 
 

8. AUTHORIZATION FOR THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO OFFER A BUYBACK OF EMPLOYEE PERSONAL 
TIME OFF FOR 2021. FISCAL IMPACT: ESTIMATE IS AROUND $820K 

Motion: It is moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Howard to approve the 
authorization for the County Administrator to Offer a Buyback of Employee Personal Time Off for 2021. 
The motion was approved 8:1 Forward to Council for approval. 

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/147086 

The votes: Yeas- Council Member Glover, Council Member Howard, Council Member Passiment, Council 
Member Lawson, Council Member Flewelling, Council Member McElynn, Council Member Rodman, 
Committee Chairman Sommerville.  Nays- Council Member Hervochon. Approved 8:1 

 

9. DISCUSSION OF BEAUFORT COUNTY REDISTRICTING BENCHMARK REPORT TO DETERMINE THE DATA 
SETS, TIMELINE, SCHEDULES TO BE USED FOR REDRAWING THE COUNTY COUNCIL DISTRICT 
BOUNDARIES  

 County Administrator recommends handling item 9 and item 12 together.  

12. A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE CRITERIA TO BE USED FOR THE REAPPORTIONMENT OF ALL COUNTY 
COUNCIL DISTRICTS AS TO POPULATION FOLLOWING THE ADOPTION BY THE STATE OF THE FEDERAL 
DECENNIAL CENSUS AS REQUIRED BY S.C. CODE ANN. SEC. 4-9-90 

 Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, seconded by Council Member Rodman to approve 
the Resolution with the amendment to change the population deviation from 10% to 5%. The motion was 
approved without objection.  

4

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/147086


Executive Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

 Council Member Flewelling would like to see this item brought back to the Executive Committee in 
December. 

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/147086 

 

10. RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT OPERATION MARIPOSA GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $260,311  

 Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, seconded by Council Member Flewelling to approve 
the Resolution to Accept Operation Mariposa Grant in the Amount of $260,311. The motion was approved 
without objection.  

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/147086 

 

11. AUTHORIZATION FOR THE ALCOHOL AND DRUG DEPARTMENT TO APPLY FOR THE RURAL OPIOID 
IMPLEMENTATION  

 Motion: It was moved by Council Member McElynn, seconded by Council Member Flewelling to Approve 
the Authorization for the Alcohol and Drug Department to Apply for the Rural Opioid Implementation. 
The motion was approved without objection. 

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/147086 

 

13. DEFERMENT OF AN ORDIANCE PROPOSING AMENDMENTS TO BEAUFORT COUNTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES: CHAPTER 46, ARTICLE II, SECTION 46.26 THROUGH 46.33 WHICH WAS REFERRED TO THE 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 Item deferred until December. 

 

14. DISCUSSION REGARDING THE ELEMENTS OF THE RULES AND PROCEDURES HANDBOOK 

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/147086 

 

 EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 

15. PURSUANT TO S.C. CODE SEC. 30-4-70(A)(2): RECEIPT OF LEGAL ADVICE WHERE THE LEGAL ADVICE 
RELATES TO A PENDING, THREATENED, OR POTENTIAL CLAIM OR OTHER MATTERS COVERED BY THE 
ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE 

 Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Council Member Glover to go into 
Executive Session. The motion was approved without objection.   

 

 

5

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/147086
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/147086
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/147086
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/147086


Executive Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

16. MATTERS ARISING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 No matters arising out of Executive Session 

 

17. ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting adjourned at 3:22 PM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

6

Item 5.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Discussion of 2022 Penny Sales Tax Referendum 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

December 6, 2021 Executive Committee  

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Eric Greenway/ Chairman Passiment 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The County Council has had some discussion regarding adding a new Penny Sales Tax 
program to the November 2022 ballot. Staff needs to know if Council wants us to proceed 
with the development of the referendum package.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

See Above 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Marginal impact on County’s Budget. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the referendum be put forward on the 2022 ballot. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Staff is simply looking for consensus. No vote is necessary. 

 

7

Item 7.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Approval of ARPA Project List Recommendations 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Executive Committee Meeting – December 6, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

(15 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

ARPA signed into law March 1, 2021 in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Beaufort County was 
apportioned $37 million.  A regional task force was developed to determine needs and make 
recommendations.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The initial project list was presented to Council at the Council Retreat in November. Staff has coordinated 
with potential projects and worked to further refine the project list.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

All projects will be funded from Beaufort County’s ARPA apportionment. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the approval of the provided project list.  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny staff recommendation of ARPA project list. 

(Next Step – Move forward to County Council for approval) 

 

8

Item 8.



Beaufort County ARPA Priority Projects  Funding Option 1  Funding Option 2  Project Focus  Partners  Matching  Comp Plan  SC Capital Projects 
 $                       37,317,446.00  $                       18,658,723.00 

ARPA Community Investments: 

Workforce 
Public Service Loan Payoff Program  $                          1,000,000.00  $                          1,000,000.00  Workforce Development  Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, 

Beaufort County School District 
 n/a 

County Public Safety Workforce Recruitment + 
Relocation

 $                             500,000.00  $                             500,000.00  Workforce Development  Community Foundation of the Lowcountry  Expected - State 
Nursing Workforce Pilot Program  $                             700,000.00  Workforce Development  Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, 

USCB 
 Expected - State 

SoLoCo Housing Trust Fund  $                          1,200,000.00  $                          1,200,000.00  Housing  SoLoCo, Businesses, Various 
Municipalities, State Housing Trust  

 n/a 

County Headhunter  $                             200,000.00  $                             200,000.00  Workforce Development 
Cyber Security  $                             500,000.00  $                             450,000.00  Residents  State of SC, South Coast Cyber   Expected - State 

Workforce  $                            4,100,000.00  $                            3,350,000.00 

Emergency Management 
Fire Station Emergency Alerting System  $                          2,500,000.00  $                          2,500,000.00  Residents + Workforce   All Fire Stations in Beaufort County  
Emergency Management  $                            2,500,000.00  $                            2,500,000.00 

Good Neighbor Fund 
Municipal Projects  $                          3,000,000.00  Town of Hilton Head Island, Town of 

Yemassee, Town of Bluffton, City of 
Beaufort, City of Hardeeville, Town of Port 
Royal,  

Good Neighbor Fund  $                            3,000,000.00  $                                              -   

Recreation 
St Helena Splashpad + Play Area  $                          1,250,000.00  Residents   Residents of St. Helena, Beaufort County 

Parks & Recreation, SCPRT 
New Riverside Park  $                          1,000,000.00 
Burton Wells Beaufort County Waterpark + Campground - 
Study, Planning and Design

 $                          1,000,000.00  $                          1,000,000.00  Recreation   Beaufort County Parks & Recreation, 
SCPRT 

 SCPRT 

Reconstruction Era National Historical Park's Network of 
Sites Signage Program

 $                             350,000.00  $                             350,000.00  Residents + Tourism  All municipalities, SCPRT  NPS Grant 

Recreation  $                            3,600,000.00  $                            1,350,000.00 

Innovation 
Broadband Adoption Push  $                             500,000.00  $                             500,000.00  100 mbps down/20 up  Beaufort County School District, 

Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, 
Internet Providers, Office of Broadband 

 Expected - State 

Starlink Beta Test  $                             200,000.00  100 mbps down/20 up  Beaufort County School District, 
Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, 
Office of Broadband 

 Expected - State 

Electric Vehicle County & Community Readiness  $                          1,200,000.00  $                          1,200,000.00  Residents + Visitors  Businesses, Community Foundation of the 
Lowcountry 

Innovation  $                            1,900,000.00  $                            1,700,000.00 

Public Health 
Rural Health Clinic + Administrative Building - Garden's 
Corner

 $                          1,000,000.00  Residents  Federally Qualified Health Centers, 
Beaufort Memorial Hospital, St Josephs 
Candler 

 Expected - State + 
Federal 

Rural Health Clinic + Administrative Building - St Helena 
Island

 $                          1,000,000.00  Residents  Federally Qualified Health Centers, 
Beaufort Memorial Hospital, St Josephs 
Candler 

 Expected - State + 
Federal 

Rural Health Clinic + Administrative Building - Daufuskie 
Island

 $                          1,000,000.00  $                          1,000,000.00  Residents  Federally Qualified Health Centers, Hilton 
Head Hospital, St Josephs Candler  

 Expected - State + 
Federal 

Tele-Health Mental Health Resources  $                          1,000,000.00  $                          1,000,000.00  Residents  Beaufort Memorial Hospital  Expected - State  
Public Health  $                            4,000,000.00  $                            2,000,000.00 

Infrastructure 
General Infrastructure  $                          8,000,000.00  Residents + Visitors   Expected - State 
General Water & Sewer Improvements  $                          3,000,000.00  Residents    BJWSA, PSD's, etc  Expected - State 
IT Data Center  $                             400,000.00  $                             400,000.00  Workforce  South Coast Cyber  Expected - State 
Regional Ferry Service  $                             500,000.00  $                             500,000.00  Residents + Visitors   LRITI, City of Savannah, SCDOT  Federal + State  
Infrastructure  $                          11,900,000.00  $                               900,000.00 

9

Item 8.



Enterprise & Capital Funds 
Airport - Initial investment for debt service  $                          2,000,000.00  $                          1,000,000.00  Residents + Visitors 
Solid Waste & Recycling - Initial investment for debt 
service 

 $                          2,000,000.00  $                          1,000,000.00  Residents    Greater Island Council, Business 
Community 

County Garage Capital Fund  $                          1,000,000.00  $                             500,000.00  Workforce 
Daufuskie Island Improvements  $                             300,000.00 
Enterprise & Capital Funds  $                            5,300,000.00  $                            2,500,000.00 

Third-party Vendors/Staff 
ARPA Consulting  $                             125,000.00  $                               62,500.00  Four Year Guidance   None 
Staff Member - ARPA Project Management  $                             520,000.00  $                             260,000.00  Four Year Project Execution  None 
Part Time Staff Member - ARPA Fiscal Management  $                             260,000.00  $                             130,000.00  Four Year Finance Execution  None 
Third-party Vendors/Staff  $                               905,000.00  $                               452,500.00 

Subtotal of Spending  $                       37,205,000.00  $                       14,752,500.00 

Balance  $                             112,446.00  $                          3,906,223.00 

10

Item 8.



 

 

 

The document(s) herein were provided to Council for 
information and/or discussion after release of the official 

agenda and backup items.  
  

11

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY ARPA 
ALLOCATIONS PRESENTATION

Monday, December 6th, 2021 12

Item 8.



What is ARPA?
H.R. 1319 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT

SIGNED INTO LAW MARCH 11TH, 2021

BEAUFORT COUNTY WILL RECEIVE $37.3M

The $1.9 trillion emergency relief bill provides dollars to municipal governments to respond to the 

COVID-19 public health emergency, offset revenue losses and bolster economic recovery.

ARPA is all about people. 

It’s about rescuing and reinvesting in our people-based infrastructure - representing an 

infusion of Federal funding with so few restrictions never before seen on the local level. The 

State of South Carolina will receive approximately $2 + Billion in ARPA funding. 

SOURCE: Top - MASC
Bottom - Heather Rath Consulting 

13

Item 8.



What can ARPA funds be used for?

Support urgent COVID-19 response efforts to continue to 

decrease the spread of the virus and to bring the pandemic under 

control

Replace lost public sector revenue to strengthen support for vital 

public services and help retain jobs

Support immediate economic stabilization for households and 

businesses

Address systemic public health and economic challenges that have 

contributed to the inequal impact of the pandemic on certain 

populations

ARPA FUNDS MAY BE USED BY THE STATE, COUNTIES 

AND MUNICIPALITIES TO:

SOURCE: US Treasury Fact Sheet 

States and territories may not use this funding to directly or indirectly 

offset a reduction in net tax revenue 

No recipient may use this funding to make a deposit to a pension 

fund. 

Funding debt service

Legal settlements or judgments

Deposits to rainy day funds

General infrastructure spending is not covered as an eligible use 

outside of water, sewer, and broadband investments 

THEY MAY NOT BE USED TO:

14

Item 8.



April 2021 Projects Identified November 4th

DRAFT RECOMMENDATIONS

The BEAUFORT COUNTY PROCESS
How we got here:

• County Administrator Eric Greenway recognized the need to form a task force to set priorities for spending
• Once-in-a-lifetime funding benefits from an inclusive task force with stakeholders from

⚬ Local Municipalities
⚬ Non-profits
⚬ Public Safety Organizations 
⚬ Education
⚬ Housing
⚬ Transportation 

FORMED TASK FORCE TASK FORCE MEETS

INCLUSIVE TASK FORCE

15

Item 8.



November - December December 6th - Today Future Date

Council Vote

The BEAUFORT COUNTY PROCESS

• Today: Review the project plans and receive comments/feedback. 
• Each plan will be met with Memorandums of Understanding (MOU’s), when necessary to ensure transparency and accountability. 
• Clear Communication with focused goals ensures credibility and confidence to move forward.

Formulated plans from Council feedback 

received on November 4th 

Present project plans & 

receive feedback 

16

Item 8.



Beaufort County Task Force Members

• Heather Rath, Heather Rath Consulting

• Reece Bertholf, City of Beaufort

• Kathy Todd, City of Beaufort

• Jared Fralix, Beaufort County - Engineering

• Patrick Hill, Beaufort County - IT

• Janis Hoffman, Technical College of the Lowcountry

• Philip Foot, Beaufort County - Public Safety

• Pinky Harriott, Beaufort County - Finance

• Bruce Kline, Lady's Island/St.Helena Fire District

• John Thompson, Bluffton Township Fire District

• Chuck Atkinson, Beaufort County - Community Development

• Hayes Williams, Beaufort County - Finance

• Pamela Cobb, Beaufort County - Disaster Recovery

• Beth Patrick, USCB

• Eric Greenway, Beaufort County - Administration

• Ken Miller, Beaufort Memorial Hospital

• Allison Coppage, Beaufort Memorial Hospital

• Laura Fanelli, Beaufort County - Communications

• Dr Frank Rodriguez, Beaufort County School District

• Paul Boulware, Bluffton Township Fire District

• Paul Sommerville, Beaufort County Council - District 2

• Van Willis, Town of Port Royal

• Joe Devito, Town of Port Royal

• Josh Gruber, Town of Hilton Head

• Shawn Colin, Town of Hilton Head

• Leanne Coulter, Daufuskie Island Council

• Chris Forster, Town of Bluffton

• Brenda Dooley, Habitat for Humanity 

• Hayes Wiser, Technical College of the Lowcountry 

• Marcy Benson, Town of Hilton Head

• Rebecca Bowyer, BJWSA

• Matt Garnes, Town of Yemassee

• Suszanne Cook, Beaufort County Sheriffs Office

• Lisa Cunningham, Town of Bluffton

• Christopher Ophard, Beaufort County - Communications

• Michael Hatfield, Bluffton Township Fire District

• Mary Lou Frazoni, Palmetto Breeze Transit

• Henry Criss, Palmetto Breeze Transit
17

Item 8.



“Our Why” 

How We
Measured

Projects

● Resilient 

● Equitable

● Unique to Place

Projects that have high leverage financial 
opportunities with matching funds from partners

• Federal
• State
• School District

Projects that have a lasting impact

Projects that serve a wide array of 
residents

Projects that have a return on investment or create a 
revenue source

• Municipalities
• Non-Profits
• Private Sector

18

Item 8.



Home Repair or Removal of Structures Security + Technology Improvements

Public recreation amenities Sewer Connection GrantsWorkforce Housing

SOURCE: Heather Rath Consulting 

Pandemic Impact Grants

How other Municipalities are using ARPA funds:

19

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Public Service Teacher Loan Payoff Program 
$1,000,000

The Challenge:
Nationally - Over 50% of teachers who enter the workforce will leave by their 5th year 
of teaching - exiting the profession, entirely. This national statistic, coupled with low 

entry pay scale and the high cost of housing make recruiting and retaining teachers in 
Beaufort County a difficult task. 

Our Goal: 
Create a sustainable workforce of teachers in Beaufort County. 

The Opportunity:
Partner with the Beaufort County School District to create a loan payoff program for 

teachers. 

● Provide up to $30,000 in loan payoff for teachers working in Beaufort County 
over a six year period. 

○ $5000/year for six years paid in six month increments. 
● Provide 100% in loan payoff for teachers working in Beaufort County for a 10 year 

period. 
● Teachers must be NEW hires to Beaufort County.
● Teachers are not required to live in Beaufort County.
● Teachers may teach at any school in the District in any curriculum 
● Proof of loan payment required.
● Awardees may not have benefitted or participated in any other incentive 

program from the Department of Education. 
● A matching request will be made to Beaufort County School District. 
● This program could be administered by Community Foundation of the 

Lowcountry or Beaufort County School District.
● Sustainability could be found in local non-profit organizations or the School 

District once success is determined. 
● Economy chapter of Comprehensive plan which strongly supports any program 

aimed at developing a highly skilled workforce. 

WORKFORCE

Measurements of Success

● Match to Comp Plan
● Match to "our Why"
● Community Tracking
● Completion Date

20

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

County Public Safety Recruitment and Relocation  
$500,000

The Challenge:
Beaufort County is challenged in recruiting and relocating trained EMS and 

Detention Center personnel. 

Our Goal: 
Shore up a sustainable workforce of trained EMS and Detention Center 

personnel. 

The Opportunity:
Create incentives for Human Resources to utilize in recruitment efforts 

through stipends, signing bonuses and other incentives in order to hire and 
keep employees. 

● Full time employees hired to work in EMS or at the Beaufort County 
Detention Center are eligible for a $10,000 sign-on bonus, paid over two 
years. 

● The first payment of $2,000 is allocated after training, followed by a 
$3,000 payment following completion of probation. 

● $2,500 will be paid on the one-year anniversary of their hire date. 
● $2,500 will be paid on the two-year anniversary of their hire date. 
● A general stipend of $2,500 per employee will be available for relocation 

to be used at Human Resources discretion. 
● This program will be managed by Beaufort County. 
● There is no requirement to live in Beaufort County 
● Sustainability could be found through local non-profit organizations once 

success is determined. 
● Economy chapter of Comprehensive plan which strongly supports any 

program aimed at developing a highly skilled workforce. 

WORKFORCE
Measurements of Success

● Match to Comp Plan
● Match to "our Why"
● Community Tracking
● Completion Date

21

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Nursing Pilot Program
$700,000

The Challenge: 
Beaufort County needs more Certified Nursing Assistants (CNA), Registered Nurses 

(RN’s) and Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN), especially given our aging population. 

Our Goal: 
Graduate 500 CNA’s over the next ten years. 

The Opportunity:
Beaufort County, in partnership with Beaufort Memorial Hospital (BMH), Technical 
College of the Lowcountry (TCL) and Beaufort County School District will partner to 

offer a CNA degree track as an Academy in high schools both North and South of the 
Broad River.

● Beaufort County School District will hire an Academy coordinator. 
● Beaufort Memorial Hospital will supply qualified staff as instructors to TCL’s CNA 

program (a model they have used with TCL in the past).
● Academy students would have the opportunity to work at BMH or other 

healthcare facilities during if age and skill requirements are met. 
● Students would have access to BMH for clinicals. 
● Upon program completion, students would have a path to RN or BSN through TCL 

(RN) or USCB (BSN). 
● Continued education could be paid for by employer. 
● This program will be managed by Beaufort County School District. 
● Sustainability could be found through local nursing non-profit organizations once 

success is determined. 
● Economy chapter of Comprehensive plan which strongly supports any program 

aimed at developing a highly skilled workforce. 

WORKFORCE
Measurements of Success

● Match to Comp Plan
● Match to "our Why"
● Community Tracking
● Completion Date

22

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Regional Housing Trust Fund 
$1,200,000

Objectives for the Housing Trust Fund: 

● Create new housing units, or rehabilitate or preserve existing housing 
units, for households at or below 120% of Area Median Income, with 
a strong focus on households at or below 60% of Area Median 
Income.

● Provide workforce housing for the growing Beaufort-Jasper economy.

● Help households maintain financial stability and build wealth by 
reducing the amount of money they must spend on housing and 
transportation.

● Strengthen relationships, build trust, and engage partners and 
stakeholders, ensuring an organized and collaborative approach to 
regional housing challenges.

● Increase awareness of existing and new financial products that serve 
the Beaufort-Jasper community.

● Leverage outside funding from banks, corporations, philanthropic 
institutions, and federal, state and local governments.

● Housing element of Comprehensive Plan calls for the development of 
a Regional Affordable Housing Trust Fund. 

SOURCE: Beaufort-Jasper Counties Regional Housing Trust Fund

WORKFORCE

Measurements of Success

● Match to Comp Plan
● Match to "our Why"
● Community Tracking
● Completion Date

23

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

County Executive Recruiter
$200,000

The Challenge:
Beaufort County needs assistance in identifying and hiring top talent. 

Our Goal: 
Identify, Hire and Retain top talent. 

The Opportunity:
Utilize a professional executive recruiter who will establish a relationship with 

County Administration and understand the needs of Department Heads. 

● Assist in identifying passive candidates.
● Specialize and understand the needs of Government.
● Understand Government “market” needs. 
● Increase ROI for hires - ensuring the “right hire” for Beaufort County.

WORKFORCE
Measurements of Success

● Match to Comp Plan
● Match to "our Why"
● Community Tracking
● Completion Date

24

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

25

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Supporting Local Municipalities through the 
Good Neighbor Fund

$3,000,000

$500,000 per municipality 

● Municipalities would apply for the funds at Community 
Foundation of the Lowcountry under the guidelines and 
timelines of ARPA. 

● A one-time disbursement of $500,000 to each 
municipality once requirements are met.

● Municipalities would be able to apply for the $500,000 
for one project or multiple projects. 

● Administered by Community Foundation of the 
Lowcountry.

● Matches many elements in the Comp Plan including 
fostering collaboration among governments and 
between agencies.

26

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

St Helena Splashpad and Play Area

$1,250,000

Balancing a unique way of life that only 
exists on St Helena - and creating  a space 
where children can come together to play, 

while preserving and promoting the culture.

● Funding would support design, planning and potentially 
some construction. 

● The Culture chapter of the Comprehensive Plan 
recommends reviewing recreation programs on St 
Helena Island and ensuring programs are addressing 
community needs. Programs are to expand beyond pre-
pandemic levels. 

27

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

New Riverside Park

$1,000,000

Creating spaces for people in Beaufort 
County to play! 

● All conceptual master plans have been approved on this 760 
Acre Site, both in Beaufort County and Town of Bluffton. 

● Offering recreation for kayaking, primitive camping, hiking 
and biking trails, water views, and more.

● Funding would go toward phase 1 of the Conceptual Master 
plan which includes: 
○ PRIMARY PARK ENTRANCE & VEHICULAR ACCESS 
○ MAIN PARKING LOT, TRAILHEAD, & RESTROOMS 
○ GARVEY HALL ENTRANCE & VEHICULAR ACCESS 
○ G. HALL PARKING LOT, TRAILHEAD & RESTROOMS 
○ HIKING TRAILS TOTALING ±6.15 MILES OF VARYING 

SURFACES & DIFFICULTY

● Addresses multiple elements of Recreation as found in the 
Comp Plan, including access to waterways, walkable and 
bikeable access and so much more. Page 78 of CP.

SOURCE: Island Packet 28

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Burton Wells Waterpark & Campground

$1,000,000

Revenue Generating Large Scale 
Recreational Space

● Revenue generating facilities similar to Greenville & 
Charleston County Parks & Recreation. 

● Addresses multiple elements of Recreation as found in 
the Comp Plan including the Public Facilities chapter. 

○ Develop a strategy to address park needs by 
expanding on existing funding options and seeking 
new sources of funding, including revenue-
generating park programs. 

○ Pursue facilities in active parks that generate 
revenue via user fees. These facilities include water 
parks, campgrounds, tennis facilities, and picnic 
shelters.

29

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Reconstruction Era National Historic Parks 
Network of Signs Program

$350,000

Signage that lends a unified County-Wide 
presence to our historic sites related to the 

Reconstruction Era.  

● Immediate impact & pride of sites.

● Signage includes both sites managed by the 
Reconstruction Era National Historical Park and sites that 
are affiliated with with Reconstruction Era but not 
managed by the National Park Service (NPS).

● Signage would direct residents and visitors to all sites 
and will be co-branded across the County with the NPS. 

● Addresses multiple elements of Economy as found in the 
Comp Plan including:
○ Explore regional and national partnerships to take 

advantage of National Park Service.
○ Partner with the Town of Hilton Head Island to plan 

and implement the Historic Mitchelville Freedom 
Park. 

30

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Innovation

Broadband Adoption - $500,000

Starlink Beta Test - $200,000

Electric Vehicle County & Community Readiness -
$1,200,000

The team at Heather Rath Consulting does not believe it is in Beaufort 
County’s best interest to present a project plan on these three 

initiatives (at this moment) as there are too many unknowns on 
funding opportunities at the State and Federal level, along with new 
dynamics such as H.R. 3684, Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, 

signed into law on November 15th, 2021.

These initiatives are extremely important to the people and future of 
Beaufort County. We ask that you approve a placeholder amount as 

designated above. 

Our anticipated timeline for project scope is late January, 2022.

From the Comp Plan: CF 2.2. Install electric vehicle charging stations at 
every Council facility that houses a sizeable workforce or has high 

public visitation. 31

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Beaufort County Economic Development 
Corporation (EDC)

South Coast Cyber Building
$500,000

The Challenge:
The United States needs 300,000 cybersecurity professionals. The field is growing by 

32% per year – faster than any other profession.

The Opportunity:
Partner with the EDC, TCL, USCB, City of Beaufort and South Coast Cyber, along with 

many other stakeholders to purchase and renovate a facility to establish a world class 
center of excellence for cyber security and cyber defense education, research, 

innovation and business. 

● Provide first class education and training for the future cyber workforce. 

● Develop business opportunities for the South Coast region focused on 
cybersecurity. 

● Meet the emerging cybersecurity needs of the private sector, government, and 
military. 

● The EDC would direct funding specifically for site purchase and renovation. 

● Economy chapter of Comprehensive plan which strongly supports any program 
aimed at developing a highly skilled workforce. 

SOURCE: South Coast Cyber 
32

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Beaufort County Economic Development Corporation 
(EDC)

The Gullah Farmers Cooperative (GFC)
$250,000

The Opportunity:
Support the Beaufort County EDC and The Gullah Farmers Cooperative in their 

efforts to bring agricultural equity to the market. 

● To date, GFC has invested over $750,000, with leveraged funds through USDA 
grants and loans, state and county support, foundation contributions and 
Cooperative funds. 

● These investments have enabled the Cooperative to redevelop the Leroy E. 
Brown Service Center, and begin distributing local farmers’ produce. 

● Job creation with regular employment of six workers at the facility.

● Monies requested would enable the GFC to complete critical facility upgrades, 
equipment purchases and upgrades, creation of an apprenticeship program 
and provide living wages for additional needed workers. 

● The EDC would direct funding specifically for outlined initiatives. 

● Culture chapter of Comp Plan states: promote active agriculture and the 
preservation of agricultural lands. 

SOURCE: Gullah Farmers Cooperative
33

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Beaufort County Economic Development Corporation 
(EDC)

Land Purchase
$50,000

The Opportunity:
Support the Beaufort County EDC with a one time grant of ARPA dollars 

towards land purchase intended to stimulate growth in underserved areas. 

● Areas of land in underserved communities have been identified by the EDC. 

● The list is informed by the Brookings Institute that writes: . . . officials 
should consider using ARP’s highly flexible state and local aid funds to 
acquire property in transitional neighborhoods before outside firms block 
out residents. This should follow a two-step process: a rapid acquisition of 
property so that it can be “banked,” followed by a methodical process of 
engaging local investors or community owners. The goal here is not to 
publicly hold land or building assets in the long term, as that will not close 
the racial wealth gap. Rather, this intermediate step resets the clock on 
land speculation, creating space for strategic organizing, planning, and 
capacity-building.”

● The EDC would work with Beaufort County on best use of designated 
dollars. 

34

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Public Health 

Community Buildings
Garden’s Corner - $1,000,000

St Helena - $1,000,000
Daufuskie - $1,000,000

The Challenge:
The lack of neighborhood community meeting spaces where 

various partners can reach residents and/or the need to 
upgrade existing community buildings. 

The Opportunity:
Create flexible space buildings that can serve as a pop-up 

medical clinic, provide stand-alone medical kiosks, provide 
an area for passive recreation, and provide a location for 

residents to gather. 

35

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Public Health 

Mental Health Telehealth 
$1,000,000

The Challenge:
A consistent source of Mental Health treatment for 

detention center inmates. 

The Opportunity:
Work with Beaufort Memorial Hospital to recruit a Hospital 

Psychiatrist that can treat inmates via Telehealth for a 
predetermined period of time.  

● This would also allow our area residents access to a 
psychiatrist through the BMH network of providers. 

● Potential funding from Beaufort County School District is 
available to serve the student population. 

● Upon success, continued support of the program will be 
necessary. 

● Comp Plan speaks to potentially constructing a new 
facility or enhancing current facility - to house specific 
special populations such as inmates with addiction or 
mental health issues. to house mentally ill inmates. 

36

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

37

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

Beaufort County Regional Ferry Planning

$500,000

The Opportunity:
Identify opportunities and incentives for 

improving/expanding marine access and transport services, 
e.g., ferry services for residents of Beaufort County. 

● The $500,000 would be used for the study and planning 
of a County-wide ferry service. 

● Potential funding is available from the Federal 
Government. 

● Partnership with Savannah, GA and other municipalities 
is available. 

● Comp Plan speaks to expanding transportation and 
transport access. 

38

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

39

Item 8.



Beaufort 

County 

Proposed 

Spending

40

Item 8.



Feedback & Further Questions
● Resilient 

● Equitable

● Unique to Place

41

Item 8.



STRATEGY  PROJECT MANAGEMENT  ADVOCACY 
CONSULTING

Heather 
Rath

hrath@heatherrathconsulting.com

(843)415-5978

42

Item 8.



 

 

 

The document(s) herein were provided to Council for 
information and/or discussion after release of the official 

agenda and backup items.  
  

43

Item 9.



C
o
o
s
a
w
S
c
e
n
ic

D
r Murad

Nevadun

Baileys
Landing

Bird Island

21

R
ib
a
u
t
R
d

Br
oa
d Riv

er
Blv

d

Laurel Bay Rd

Ro
be
rt S

ma
lls

Pk
wy

Marine Corps
Air Station
Beaufort

Burton Wells
County Park Burton

Laurel Bay

Grays Hill

Daws IslandSpring Island

Horse Island

170170

Savannah Hwy

Ribaut
Rd

Okatie Hwy

Callawassie
Island Club

Shell Point

Fripp Landing

Parris Island

Port Royal

Lady's Island

Sea Island Pkwy

Beaufort

Reconstruction
Era National
Historical Park

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, USDA

44

Item 9.



Okatee River

Bufflehead Ln

Bluff ton Pkw
y

Davis Rd

Ol
d
Mi
lle
r R

d
Wicklow Dr

Hampton Lake Xing

La
ke

Poin
t Dr

Fis
h Dancer Ct

Ha

m
p
to
n
P
k
w
y

B
u
c
k
w
a
lte

r
P
kw

yBluffton Pkwy
O
k
a
ti
e
H
w
y

Hampton Hall
Country Club

46

46

Farnsle
i g

h
A
v
e

O
ld

M
il
le
r
R
d H

am

pt
on

Ha
ll B

lv
d

Bartons Run Dr

H eadwaters

R
d

May River Rd

W
e
s
tb

ury Park
W
ay

S
im

m
o
n
sv
ill

e
Rd

F
a
irw

ay

D
r

He McCracken
Cir

Fording
Island

R
d

Bluffton Pkwy

Rose Hill Golf
Club

Pinecrest Golf
Course

Crane
Island

B
u
c
k
P
o
in
t
R
d

Mt Pe
lia

Rd

H
a
ig
l e
r
B
lv
d

Jason St

Able St

Re
d C

ed
ar

S
t

4th Ave

S
m
it
h
L
n

He McC
ra
ck
en

Ci
r

B
ig

B
lu
ff

R
d

S
a
n
d
y
R
u
n
R
d

May River Rd

B
u
c
k
w
a
lte

r
P
k
w
y

May River Golf
Club

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, INCREMENT P, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau,
USDA

45

Item 9.



13

95

Po
ss

um
C
or
ne
r
R
d

Early Branch

McPhersonville

Davidson

Barkersville

278

278

95

Morgandollar Rd

Coosaw
S
cen

ic
D
r

Gillison Branch Rd

Pocota ligo Rd

Po
ss

um
C
o
rn
er

R
d

Kin
gs

Hw
y

Jas
per

Hw
y

Bashan

Grays

Gillisonville

Coosawhatchie

Possum Corner

Pocotaligo

95

95

G
rays

H
w
y

L
o
w
c
o
u
n
tr
y
D
r

Smiths Xing

Old House
R
d

C
o
o
s
a
w
S
c
e
n
ic

D
r

K
a
to

B
a
y
R
d

Ja
sp
er

H
w
y

Ridgeland

Murad

Mitchellville Nevadun

Ricetown

Switzerland

141

278 Fording Island Rd

O
ka
tie

Hw
y

L
o
w
c
o
u
n
tr
y
D
r

Bluffton Pkwy

W Fording Island Rd

N
O
k
a t
ie

H
w
y

Okat
ie Hwy

Ar
ge
nt
Bl
vd

Indepe
ndence

Blvd

Oldfield Golf
Club

Hidden Cypress
Golf Course

Argent Lakes
Golf Course

Hampton Hall
Country Club

Eagle's Pointe
Golf Club

Okatie Creek
Golf Club

Berkeley Hall
Club

Belfair

Okatie

Pinckney
Colony

Baileys
Landing

Jasper

Pine Island

Page Island

Daufuskie Island

170

May River Rd

May River Golf
Club

Bluffton

Pritchardville

Daufuskie
Island

Myrtle Island

Pritchard

Daufuskie
Landing

Jones Island

Turtle Island

80

Islands
Expy

Saff
old Dr

Fort Pulaski
National
Monument

Whitemarsh
Island

Riverside

Wilmington
Park

Isle of
Hope-Dutch

Island

Wilmington
Island

17

Blountville Blake

Jonesville

White Hall

17

21

River Rd

K
in
lo
c
h
R
d

Keans Neck Rd

O
ld

S
h
e
ld
o
n
C
h
u
rc
h
R
d

Ch
ar
le
st
on

Hw
y

Trask
Pkw

y

Ace Basin
National Wildlife

Refuge

Yemassee

Sheldon

Gardens
Corner

Fairview
Briars

Brewton

Lobeco

Tomotley

Barnwell Island

Halls Island

Bird Island

21

R
ib
a
u
t
R
d

Br
oa
d Riv

er
Blv

d

Laurel Bay Rd

T
ra
s
k
P
k
w
y

Ro
ber

t S
ma

lls
Pk

wy

Laurel Bay
Naval Area

Marine Corps
Air Station
Beaufort

Burton Wells
County Park Burton

Laurel Bay

Grays Hill

Coosaw

Seabrook

Daws IslandSpring Island

Horse Island

Port Royal Sound

170170

278

Savannah Hwy

Ribaut
Rd

Okatie Hwy

MC Recruiting
Depot Parris

Island

Callawassie
Island Club

Colleton River
Golf Couse

Moss Creek
Plantation Golf

Club

Shell Point

Fripp Landing

Parris Island

Port Royal

Pinckney Island

Barataria Island

Bull Island

Calibogue Sound

278

278

Fording Island Rd

Ma
rshland Rd

Bluffton
P

kw y

Wi lliam
Hi
lto

n Pkwy

Haig Point Club

Robert T Jones
GC at Palmetto

Dunes

Port Royal Golf
& Racquet Club

Heron Point by
Pete Dye

Palmetto Hall
Plantation Club

Golden Bear
Golf Club at
Indigo Run

Brighton Beach

Folly Field

Lawton

Spanish Wells

Hickory Bluff

Shipyard
Plantations

Sea Pines

Hilton Head
Island

Tybee Island

Fort Screven

Ace Basin Pkw
y

A
ce
B
as
in
P
k
w
y

Green Pond

Warren Island

Big Island

Williman Island

Ac

e
B
as
in
Pk
w
y Hickory Hill

Wiggins

Lady's Island

Coosaw Island
Morgan Island

Dataw Island

Sea Island Pkwy

Sea Is la
nd

Pk
wy

Dataw Island
Club

Lady's Island
Country Club

Chisolm

Frogmore

Beaufort

Pritchards
Island

Old Island

St Phillips Island

Capers Island

St Helena Island

77

77

La
nd
s
En
d
Rd

Sea Island Pkwy

Se
as
id
e
Rd

Reconstruction
Era National
Historical Park

St Helena

Port Royal
Plantation

Bennetts Point

Ashepoo Siding

Hutchinson
Island

Ashe Island

St Helena Sound

Seabrook

Old Island

Fripp Island

Hunting Island

Harbor Island

Hunting Island
State Park

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, USDA

Alternative 3a

.
0 2.5 5 7.5 10

Miles

Alternative_3a
Districts

District 1 - Dawson

District 2 - Sommerville

District 3 - Glover

District 4 - Howard

District 5 - Flewelling

District 6 - Passiment

District 7 - Cunningham

District 8 - Hervochon

District 9 - Lawson

District 10 - McEllyn

District 11 - Rodman

District 11 16903 -108 -0.63 14635 86.58 584 3.46 1132 6.7 552 3.24

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 10 17019 8 0.05 11033 64.83 1675 9.84 3810 22.39 501 2.95

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 9 17126 115 0.68 9846 57.49 1818 10.62 4766 27.83 696 4.09

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 8 17090 79 0.46 13958 81.67 704 4.12 1945 11.38 483 2.84

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 7 16852 -159 -0.93 12423 73.72 1204 7.14 2261 13.42 964 5.67

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 6 17031 20 0.12 13545 79.53 1246 7.32 1568 9.21 672 3.95

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 5 16865 -146 -0.86 12697 75.29 1746 10.35 1567 9.29 855 5.03

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 4 17128 117 0.69 11309 66.03 3334 19.47 1398 8.16 1,087 6.39

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 3 16872 -139 -0.82 8471 50.21 6187 36.67 1591 9.43 623 3.66

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 2 17188 177 1.04 74.8 12857 1988 11.57 1542 8.97 801 4.71

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White % White Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 1 17043 32 0.19 5930 34.79 8619 50.57 1831 10.74 663 3.9

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

D1

D2

D3

D4
D5

D6
D7

D8

D9

D10

D11

46

Item 9.



13

95

Po
ss

um
C
or
ne
r
R
d

Early Branch

McPhersonville

Davidson

Barkersville

278

278

95

Morgandollar Rd

Coosaw
S
cen

ic
D
r

Gillison Branch Rd

Pocota ligo Rd

Po
ss

um
C
o
rn
er

R
d

Kin
gs

Hw
y

Jas
per

Hw
y

Bashan

Grays

Gillisonville

Coosawhatchie

Possum Corner

Pocotaligo

95

95

G
rays

H
w
y

L
o
w
c
o
u
n
tr
y
D
r

Smiths Xing

Old House
R
d

C
o
o
s
a
w
S
c
e
n
ic

D
r

K
a
to

B
a
y
R
d

Ja
sp
er

H
w
y

Ridgeland

Murad

Mitchellville Nevadun

Ricetown

Switzerland

141

278 Fording Island Rd

O
ka
tie

Hw
y

L
o
w
c
o
u
n
tr
y
D
r

Bluffton Pkwy

W Fording Island Rd

N
O
k
a t
ie

H
w
y

Okat
ie Hwy

Ar
ge
nt
Bl
vd

Indepe
ndence

Blvd

Oldfield Golf
Club

Hidden Cypress
Golf Course

Argent Lakes
Golf Course

Hampton Hall
Country Club

Eagle's Pointe
Golf Club

Okatie Creek
Golf Club

Berkeley Hall
Club

Belfair

Okatie

Pinckney
Colony

Baileys
Landing

Jasper

Pine Island

Page Island

Daufuskie Island

170

May River Rd

May River Golf
Club

Bluffton

Pritchardville

Daufuskie
Island

Myrtle Island

Pritchard

Daufuskie
Landing

Jones Island

Turtle Island

80

Islands
Expy

Saff
old Dr

Fort Pulaski
National
Monument

Whitemarsh
Island

Riverside

Wilmington
Park

Isle of
Hope-Dutch

Island

Wilmington
Island

17

Blountville Blake

Jonesville

White Hall

17

21

River Rd

K
in
lo
c
h
R
d

Keans Neck Rd

O
ld

S
h
e
ld
o
n
C
h
u
rc
h
R
d

Ch
ar
le
st
on

Hw
y

Trask
Pkw

y

Ace Basin
National Wildlife

Refuge

Yemassee

Sheldon

Gardens
Corner

Fairview
Briars

Brewton

Lobeco

Tomotley

Barnwell Island

Halls Island

Bird Island

21

R
ib
a
u
t
R
d

Br
oa
d Riv

er
Blv

d

Laurel Bay Rd

T
ra
s
k
P
k
w
y

Ro
ber

t S
ma

lls
Pk

wy

Laurel Bay
Naval Area

Marine Corps
Air Station
Beaufort

Burton Wells
County Park Burton

Laurel Bay

Grays Hill

Coosaw

Seabrook

Daws IslandSpring Island

Horse Island

Port Royal Sound

170170

278

Savannah Hwy

Ribaut
Rd

Okatie Hwy

MC Recruiting
Depot Parris

Island

Callawassie
Island Club

Colleton River
Golf Couse

Moss Creek
Plantation Golf

Club

Shell Point

Fripp Landing

Parris Island

Port Royal

Pinckney Island

Barataria Island

Bull Island

Calibogue Sound

278

278

Fording Island Rd

Ma
rshland Rd

Bluffton
P

kw y

Wi lliam
Hi
lto

n Pkwy

Haig Point Club

Robert T Jones
GC at Palmetto

Dunes

Port Royal Golf
& Racquet Club

Heron Point by
Pete Dye

Palmetto Hall
Plantation Club

Golden Bear
Golf Club at
Indigo Run

Brighton Beach

Folly Field

Lawton

Spanish Wells

Hickory Bluff

Shipyard
Plantations

Sea Pines

Hilton Head
Island

Tybee Island

Fort Screven

Ace Basin Pkw
y

A
ce
B
as
in
P
k
w
y

Green Pond

Warren Island

Big Island

Williman Island

Ac

e
B
as
in
Pk
w
y Hickory Hill

Wiggins

Lady's Island

Coosaw Island
Morgan Island

Dataw Island

Sea Island Pkwy

Sea Is la
nd

Pk
wy

Dataw Island
Club

Lady's Island
Country Club

Chisolm

Frogmore

Beaufort

Pritchards
Island

Old Island

St Phillips Island

Capers Island

St Helena Island

77

77

La
nd
s
En
d
Rd

Sea Island Pkwy

Se
as
id
e
Rd

Reconstruction
Era National
Historical Park

St Helena

Port Royal
Plantation

Bennetts Point

Ashepoo Siding

Hutchinson
Island

Ashe Island

St Helena Sound

Seabrook

Old Island

Fripp Island

Hunting Island

Harbor Island

Hunting Island
State Park

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, USDA

Alternative 3b

.
0 2.5 5 7.5 10

Miles

Alternative_3b
Districts

District 1 - Dawson

District 2 - Sommerville

District 3 - Glover

District 4 - Howard

District 5 - Flewelling

District 6 - Passiment

District 7 - Cunningham

District 8 - Hervochon

District 9 - Lawson

District 10 - McEllyn

District 11 - Rodman

District 1 17043 32 0.19 5930 34.79 8619 50.57 1831 10.74 663 3.9

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 2 17188 177 1.04 12857 74.8 1988 11.57 1542 8.97 801 4.71

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 3 16872 -139 -0.82 8471 50.21 6187 36.67 1591 9.43 623 3.66

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 4 17128 117 0.69 11309 66.03 3334 19.47 1398 8.16 1,087 6.39

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 5 16865 -146 -0.86 12697 75.29 1746 10.35 1567 9.29 855 5.03

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 6 17031 20 0.12 13545 79.53 1246 7.32 1568 9.21 672 3.95

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 7 16852 -159 -0.93 12423 73.72 1204 7.14 2261 13.42 964 5.67

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 8 16760 -251 -1.48 13639 81.38 699 4.17 1939 11.57 483 2.84

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 9 17126 115 0.68 9846 57.49 1818 10.62 4766 27.83 696 4.09

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 10 16905 -106 -0.62 11103 65.68 1697 10.04 3620 21.41 485 2.85

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

District 11 17347 336 1.98 14884 85.8 567 3.27 1328 7.66 568 3.34

Districts Total Population Variance From Target Variance % White White % Black Black % Hispanic Hispanic % All Other Groups All Other Groups %

D1

D2

D3

D4
D5

D6
D7

D8

D9

D10

D11

47

Item 9.



462

95

170

141

462

46

278

95

Hardeeville

Ridgeland

Savannah

174

17

17

17Ace Basin
National Wildlife

Refuge

170

278

21

21

MC Recruiting
Depot Parris

Island

Reconstruction
Era National
Historical Park

Beaufort

Hilton Head Island

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, FAO, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS

48

Item 9.



Bl
uf
fton Pkwy

Bluffton

Myrtle Island

Por t
Royal
Sound

278 Moss Creek
Plantation Golf

Club Pinckney
Island

Baratar ia
Is landBul l

Is land

Cal ibogue
Sound

Bluffton

P kwy

278

278

Robert T Jones
GC at Palmetto

Dunes

Port Royal Golf
& Racquet Club

Palmetto Hall
Plantation Club

Golden Bear
Golf Club at
Indigo Run

Brighton Beach

Folly Field

Spanish Wells

Hickory Bluff

Hilton Head
Island

Capers
Is land

Port Royal
Plantation

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, USDA

Bl
uf
fton Pkwy

Bluffton

Myrtle Island

Por t
Royal
Sound

278 Moss Creek
Plantation Golf

Club Pinckney
Island

Baratar ia
Is land

Bul l
Is land

Cal ibogue
Sound

Bluffton

P kwy

278

278

Robert T Jones
GC at Palmetto

Dunes

Port Royal Golf
& Racquet Club

Palmetto Hall
Plantation Club

Golden Bear
Golf Club at
Indigo Run

Brighton Beach

Folly Field

Spanish Wells

Hickory Bluff

Hilton Head
Island

Port Royal
Plantation

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, USDA

Alt 3b

Alt 3a

49

Item 9.



 

BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE BEAUFORT COUNTY FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE POLICY 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Executive Committee – December 13, 2021 

Presenter Information: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Engineering 

Pamela Cobb, Disaster Recovery Coordinator – Alternate 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Beaufort County recognizes the need to provide for and to assist with the applications for and 
distribution of funds from federal mitigation programs for the purpose of assisting with the cost to 
elevate certain structures above the base flood elevation who have incurred repetitive loss due to 
flooding.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

County staff to oversee the implementation of applications from homeowners, who have been 
awarded by a mitigation grant program, meet the requirements per the Beaufort County Flood 
Mitigation Policy, and the reimbursement process of the project.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

No fiscal impact. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the resolution to adopt the Beaufort County Flood Mitigation 
Assistance Policy. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve a resolution to adopt the Beaufort County Flood Mitigation Assistance Policy. 

Motion to deny a resolution to adopt the Beaufort County Flood Mitigation Assistance Policy. 

(Next Steps – Go before full council for determination on Resolution, December 13, 2021.) 

 

50

Item 10.



RESOLUTION 2021/______ 

 

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE BEAUFORT COUNTY  

FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE POLICY 

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County (“County”) recognizes the need to provide for and to assist 

with the applications for and distribution of funds from federal programs (“Federal Funding”) for 

the purpose of assisting with the cost to elevate certain structures above the base flood elevation 

which are located in the Special Flood Hazard Area of unincorporated Beaufort County; and   

WHEREAS, the Federal Funding is for the purpose of Flood Mitigation, Hazard 

Mitigation or Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities to assist in South Carolina’s 

efforts to reduce or eliminate the risk of repetitive flood damage to buildings and structures 

insurable under the National Flood Insurance Program; and  

 WHEREAS, when a resident is the fee simple owner of a home in the unincorporated area 

of the County (“Recipient”) and has a need for assistance in the elevation of their home located in 

the Special Flood Hazard Area, then Recipient may be eligible to receive assistance from Federal 

Funding; and  

WHEREAS, when the Federal Funding entity approves Recipient to receive assistance, 

the Federal Funding entity requires that Grant Funds to be reimbursed through a government 

entity; and 

WHEREAS, the County, a government entity, desires to adopt a Flood Mitigation 

Assistance Policy, as provided in “Exhibit A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference, to establish the policies and procedures in order to promote citizens to take proactive 

and preventive actions to avoid future flooding of their homes by being the government entity in 

which the Grant Funds can be reimbursed through as required by the Federal Funding entity.   

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Council of Beaufort County 

adopts the Flood Mitigation Assistance Policy as provided in Exhibit A attached hereto.   

 

Adopted this _____ day of ______________, 2021.  

 

     COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

     _______________________________________ 

     Joseph F. Passiment 

Attest:  

 

____________________________________ 

 Sarah W. Brock  

51

Item 10.



EXHIBIT A 

BEAUFORT COUNTY  

FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE POLICY 
 

The purpose of this Flood Mitigation Assistance Policy (“Policy”) is to assist citizens in being able to 

mitigate or significantly reduce repetitive loss to their fee simple owned property.   

1. DEFINITIONS.  The following terms are defined as follows:  

(A) “County”. A government entity, Beaufort County, a subdivision of the State of South 

Carolina.  

 

(B) “Effective Date”. The date the County and Authorized Entity have approved as the date 

the Recipient may begin the Project.   

 

(C) “Authorized Entity”. The federal or state entity providing Grant Funds including, but not 

limited to, the Federal Emergency Management Agency as an agency of the United States 

Department of Homeland Security, South Carolina Emergency Management Division, or 

Department of Natural Resources of the State of South Carolina. 

 

(D) “Grant Funds”. The funds granted by the Authorized Entity to be reimbursed to Recipient 

for the sole purpose of completing the Project.   

 

(E) “Recipient”.  A citizen of Beaufort County, and the fee simple owner of the Property, 

pursuing the assistance of the Authorized Entity in order to obtain Grant Funds through a 

mitigation grant program. 

 

(F) “Project”.  The construction, reconstruction, repair, or remodel of the Recipient’s Property 

as approved by the Authorized Entity.    

 

(G) “Project Cost”.  The costs and fees required to complete the project it is totality, whereby 

such fees and cost have been approved by FEMA.   

 

(H) “Property”.  The dwelling and the real property located in unincorporated Beaufort County 

owned fee simple by Recipient, said dwelling shall be occupied by Recipient and is 

considered Recipient’s primary residency.     

 

2. APPLICABILITY.  This Policy applies to all Projects which have been submitted by Recipient 

to Authorizing Entity and have received written approval from Authorized Entity that the Project meets 

Authorized Entity’s terms and conditions of the mitigation grant program.  A Recipient shall adhere to all 

of the terms, conditions and requirements of this Policy.     

 

3. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS.  In addition to any and all documents required by Authorized Entity, 

the Recipient shall execute a “County Grant Fund Agreement” consistent with and similar to “Exhibit A” 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  The County Grant Fund Agreement may be amended 

from time to time to meet the requirements of County Administration, state laws or federal laws. The 

Recipient shall provide or execute any and all documents as required by this Policy and the County Grant 

Fund Agreement.     

  

4. PROJECT COST. The Recipient is solely responsible for the payment of any cost or fees 

associated with the Project that exceeds the Grant Funds amount, regardless if the excess fees or costs are 

52

Item 10.



unforeseeable or unexpected. The County shall not be responsible for, or be requested to pay, any costs 

associated with or required in order to complete the Project. 

 

5. REQUIRED FINANCIAL VERIFICATION.  Prior to initiating any portion of the Project or 

expending any monies in preparation to initiate the Project, the Recipient shall submit to the County proof 

of financing in an amount equal to, or greater than, the Project Cost.  Any and all contractors shall be 

required to secure a General Contractor Bond valued at one hundred (100%) percent of the Project Cost.  

The Recipient shall adhere to all financial verification requirements as agreed to in the County Grant Fund 

Agreement.    

 

6. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE.  The period of performance shall start on the Effective Date and 

end on the designated date as determined by the Authorized Entity (“Performance Period”).  All costs must 

be incurred during the Performance Period. Any costs incurred prior to or after the Performance Period 

shall not be reimbursable and shall be at the sole expense of the Recipient, regardless of whether said cost 

would have been reimbursable during the Performance Period.  

 

7. PROGRESS REPORTS. The Recipient shall submit a written progress report to the County every 

sixty (60) days, starting on the Effective Date (“Progress Report”).  The Progress Report shall describe the 

status of Recipient’s performance since the preceding report and the progress expected to be made in the 

next successive period.  Each report shall describe Recipient’s activities by reference to the work that has 

been initiated or completed, shall include a statement of expenses incurred, and a financial statement from 

a bank or lending service.  A Progress Report is required even if there has been no activity.  

 

8. COSTS DURING PERFORMANCE PERIOD. Recipient shall be solely responsible for making 

all payments to contractors and subcontractors, and any other fees or costs associated with the Project during 

the Performance Period.  The fees and costs subject to this Section include any and all unforeseeable or 

unexpected fees or costs that may occur.     

 

9. DISTRIBUTION OF GRANT FUNDS.  The County shall only distribute Grant Funds to 

Recipient after the requirements established in this Policy have been fulfilled and all of the terms and 

conditions of the County Grant Fund Agreement have been completed, including but not limited to, the 

construction of the building is complete, and a Certificate of Occupancy is provided to the County.  

Distribution of Grant Funds shall only occur one (1) time, any costs or fees not included in the one-time 

distribution shall be at the Recipient’s cost.   

 

(A) Invoice Review. The Recipient shall submit to the Provider a summary of invoices, actual 

copies of invoices, proof of payment, and an affirmation statement from the contractor or subcontractor at 

the time of submittal.  The County shall review the aforementioned documents and communicate in writing 

to Recipient any discrepancies, concerns, or unapproved items. 

 

(B) Distribution of Grant Funds. Following the invoice review process, Grant Funds shall be 

submitted by County to the Authorized Entity in order to obtain the Grant Funds.  Upon receipt of Grant 

Funds from the Authorized Entity, the County shall remit the Grant Funds to the Recipient.   

 

(C) Non-Appropriation.  Notwithstanding any provision of this Policy or any agreement, the 

Recipient shall agree that in the event sufficient appropriations, grants, or monies are not granted by 

Beaufort County Council to fund the Flood Mitigation Assistance Program, any and all obligations of the 

County would terminate without further obligation of County. 

                  

 

53

Item 10.



EXHIBIT A 
 

 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT  ) 

     )  GRANT FUND 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )  AGREEMENT 

 

 

THIS GRANT FUND AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ___ day of 

______________________, 2021 (“Effective Date”) by and between Beaufort County, a political 

subdivision of the State of South Carolina, (“Provider”) and _________________ (“Recipient”).  The 

Provider and Recipient hereinafter will collectively be referred to as the “Parties”. 

WHEREAS, the Provider applied to a Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (“FEMA”) 

Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant (“FMA Grant”) program pursuant to the Congressional appropriation 

for Fiscal year 2017; and  

WHEREAS, the purpose of FMA Grant is to assist in the State of South Carolina’s efforts to reduce 

or eliminate the risk of repetitive flood damage to buildings and structures insurable under the National 

Flood Insurance Program (“NFIP”); and  

WHEREAS, the Recipient desires to eliminate the risk of repetitive flood damage by renovating, 

or demolishing and rebuilding a home owned by Recipient and located at (insert address of Property); and 

WHEREAS, Recipient received FMA Grant approval and FEMA has confirmed a federal share in 

the amount of (insert dollar amount of Grant Funds) ($_____________) (“Grant Funds”) is being granted 

to demolish and rebuild the home on the Property (“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, FEMA requires that Grant Funds be reimbursed through a government entity; and 

WHEREAS, the Provider, a government entity, desires to promote citizens to take all proactive 

and preventive actions available to avoid future flooding of their homes.   

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree to abide by the terms and conditions as follows:     

 

10. PROPERTY. Subject to terms and conditions herein, Recipient is the fee simple owner of the real 

property located at (insert address of Property) and further described in “Exhibit B” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference , collectively the “Property”. 

 

11. PROJECT.  The Recipient during the application process has provided specific plans for 

construction, reconstruction, repair or remodel of the Property.  The plans as shown and further described 

in “Exhibit C”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, have been reviewed and approved by 

FEMA, and all actions required to complete the plans are collectively hereinafter referred to as the 

“Project”.   

 

12. PROJECT COST.  The Recipient submitted the required documents to FEMA pursuant to the 

FMA Grant program.  The approved Project’s total cost is in the amount of (insert dollar amount of Project) 

($_____________) (“Project Cost”), and FEMA has agreed to reimburse the Grant Funds to the Recipient. 

 

(A) Associated Costs. The Recipient is solely responsible for the payment of any cost 

associated with the Project that exceed the Grant Funds amount, regardless if the excess costs are 

unforeseeable or unexpected.  The Provider shall not be responsible for, or be requested to pay, any costs 

associated with or required in order to complete the Project.       

54

Item 10.



13. REQUIRED FINANCIAL VERIFICATION.  Prior to initiating any portion of the Project or 

expending any monies in preparation to initiate the Project, the Recipient shall submit to the Provider proof 

of financing in an amount equal to the Project Cost.  Acceptable documents for proof of financing include:  

i. A Letter of Credit from a lender; or 

 

ii. Proof of Funds letter from the bank showing the Recipient possesses monies equal to the 

Project Cost.  The cash funds must be held in a single escrow account.   

  

The Provider reserves the right to request any documents, certifications, or reports from the Recipient in 

order to verify the Recipient’s financial stability.    

 

(A) Contractors.  Recipient shall require that a general contractor, or if no general contractor 

than any contractors associated with the Project, secure a General Contractor Bond valued at one hundred 

percent (100%) of the Project Cost.  A copy of the aforementioned bond shall be delivered to the Provider 

prior to the initiation of the Project.  

 

14. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE.  The period of performance shall start on the Effective Date and 

end on (Insert Date), hereinafter the “Performance Period”.  All costs must be incurred during the 

Performance Period. Any costs incurred prior to the Effective Date shall not be reimbursable, and shall be 

at the sole expense of the Recipient. 

 

15. PROGRESS REPORTS. The recipient shall submit a written progress report to the Provider every 

sixty (60) days, starting on the Effective Date of this Agreement (“Progress Report”).  The Progress Report 

shall describe the status of Recipient’s performance since the preceding report and the progress expected to 

be made in the next successive period.  Each report shall describe Recipient’s activities by reference to the 

work that has been initiated or completed, shall include a statement of expenses incurred, and a financial 

statement from a bank or lending service.   

 

A Progress Report is required even if there has been no activity. Insufficient Progress Reports may be 

rejected by the Provider, and Provider can request an updated Progress Report immediately.          

 

16. COMPLIANCE WITH FEMA and FMA. The Recipient shall follow all guidelines, conditions, 

terms, and regulations set forth in the agreement between the County and federal entity attached hereto and 

incorporated by reference as “Exhibit C”.   

 

17. DISTRIBUTION OF GRANT FUNDS.  The Recipient shall be solely responsible for making all 

payments to contractors and subcontractors associated with this project.  The Parties agree that the 

distribution of Grant Funds shall occur only after all terms and conditions have been satisfied, following 

the requirements established in this Section have been fulfilled, the construction of the building is complete, 

and a Certificate of Occupancy is provided to the Provider.  The Parties agree that the distribution of Grant 

Funds shall only occur one (1) time after all requirements established in this Section have been fulfilled.   

 

(A) Submittal of Invoices for Approval.  The Recipient shall submit to the Provider a complete 

summary of invoices, actual copies of invoices, proof of payment, and an affirmation statement from the 

contractor or subcontractor at the time of submittal; hereinafter collectively the “Submittal Packet”.  The 

Submittal Packet shall be submitted with the following items completed:   

  

i. Summary of Invoices. The summary shall be submitted in a table format and contain the 

following: (1) date the cost incurred; (2) name of the vendor or contractor; (3) the amount 

owed; (4) amount paid; and (5) date of payment.  The Recipient shall sign the Summary of 

Invoices and acknowledge that all items being submitted have been paid in full.    

55

Item 10.



 

ii. Invoices.   A copy of any and all invoices associated with the costs stated on the Summary 

of Invoices.  Each invoice shall be signed by the contractor and Recipient. 

 

iii. Proof of Payment.  The Recipient shall provide a copy of the cleared check written to the 

Contractor for the costs as shown on the Invoice or receipt when a credit or debit card is 

used as payment.    

 

iv. Affirmation Statement.  Attached to any individual Invoice shall be a notarized statement 

from the Contractor affirming the following: (1) the work described in the invoice has been 

performed; (2) the charges are accurate as provided; and (3) the invoice has been paid in 

full by the Recipient.    

  

(B) Approval for Distribution of Grant Funds.  The Provider shall review the Submittal Packet 

within thirty (30) days of receipt.  If there are discrepancies, concerns, or unapproved items; then the 

Provider shall provide written notice to the Recipient immediately. The Provider shall not be responsible 

in any manner for any delay or failure to obtain Grant Funds due to failure by Recipient to comply with any 

request of Provider during the approval for distribution of Grant Funds process.  

 

(C) Distribution of Grant Funds. Following the invoice approval process set forth in this 

Section and Pursuant to (“Name of Exhibit C Agreement to be inserted”), Grant Funds shall be submitted 

by the Provider to FEMA in order to obtain the Grant Funds.  Upon receipt of Grant Funds from FEMA, 

the Provider shall remit the Grant Funds by way of check, mailed to the address stated in Section 9 of this 

Agreement, and in the name of the Recipient.                  

 

18. RISK OF LOSS OR DAMAGE. In case the Property is destroyed wholly or partially by fire or 

other casualty prior to completion of the Project the Provider shall be released of any and all terms and 

obligations established in this Agreement.    

 

19. DEFAULT. If Recipient or Provider fails to perform any provision of this Agreement, the other 

party may elect to seek any remedy provided in equity as a result of such failure to perform, including an 

action for specific performance of Recipient’s obligations under this Agreement, or terminate this 

Agreement with a five (5) day written notice.  

 

(A) Termination.  The Provider reserves the right to terminate this Agreement without cause at 

any time. Provider reserves the right to terminate if funding is not approved.    

 

20. NON-APPROPRIATION.  Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, the Parties hereto 

agree that in the event sufficient appropriations, grants, or monies are not granted by Beaufort County 

Council to fund the Flood Mitigation Assistance Program, this Agreement shall terminate without further 

obligation of County. 

 

21. INDEMNIFICATION.  Recipient hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Provider against 

and from any and all claims or property damage, or personal injury, arising out of or with respect to the 

Project or from any activity, work, or thing done, permitted or suffered by Recipient, contractor, 

subcontractor, or other third party in, on or about the Property. 

 

22. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, demands or other communications required or permitted to be 

given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be addressed and delivered by electronic mail, by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, or by Federal Express, or by hand delivery by reputable courier, to each party 

56

Item 10.



at the addresses set forth below.  Any such notice, request, demand, or other communication shall be 

considered given or delivered, as the case may be, on the date of receipt.  Rejection or other refusal to accept 

or inability to deliver because of changed address of which proper notice was not given shall be deemed to 

be receipt of the notice, request, demand, or other communication.  By giving prior written notice thereof, 

any party may from time to time and at any time change its address for notices hereunder.  Legal counsel 

for the respective parties may send to the other party any notices, requests, demands, or other 

communications required or permitted to be given hereunder by such party. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23. OTHER PROVISIONS.  

  

(A) Time of Essence.  Time is and shall be of the essence in this Agreement. 

 

(B) Mutual Cooperation.  The Parties shall cooperate with each other, and will use all 

reasonable efforts to cause the fulfillment of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.    

 

(C) Independent Parties. It is mutually agreed that Provider is independent of Recipient, and 

as such Recipient shall exercise complete control over the actions performed by contractors or 

subcontractors.  Additionally, the Parties mutually agree that this Agreement is for the sole purpose as set 

forth in this Agreement and does not establish an agency or employment relationship. 

 

(D) Disputes. All claims, disputes, and controversies arising out of or in relation to the 

performance, interpretation, application, or enforcement of this Agreement, including but not limited to 

breach thereof, shall be first submitted to an agreed upon mediator. The disputing party shall be responsible 

for cost of mediation. 

 

(E) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties 

pertaining to the subject matter contained herein.  

 

(F) Amendment or Modification. This Agreement cannot be amended or modified orally or 

by a single party.  No amendment or modification to this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and 

signed by both Parties to this Agreement. 

 

(G) Binding Nature and Assignment.  This Agreement shall bind the Parties and their 

respective successors in interest as may be permitted by law. Neither party to this Agreement may assign 

their rights or obligations arising under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. 

 

(H) No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended solely for the benefit of the 

Parties and not for the benefit of any other person or entity. 

 

(I) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, and all such 

executed counterparts shall constitute the same agreement. The Parties agree that this Agreement may be 

communicated by use of a fax or other electronic means, such as electronic mail and the internet, and that 

the signatures, initials and handwritten or typewritten modifications to any of the foregoing shall be deemed 

To Provider:  To Recipient: 

Beaufort County   

Attn: ________________ 

Post Office Box 1228 

Beaufort, SC 29901-1228 

 

_____________________ 

_____________________ 

_____________________ 

 

57

Item 10.



valid and binding upon the Parties as if the original signatures, initials and handwritten or typewritten 

modifications were present on the documents. 

 

(J) Captions. The section headings appearing in this Agreement are for convenience of 

reference only and are not intended to any extent for the purpose, to limit or define the test of any section 

or any subsection hereof. 

 

(K) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall nonetheless remain in full 

force and effect. 

 

(L) Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing 

and signed by the party waiving its rights. No delay or omission by either party to exercise any right or 

remedy it has under this Agreement shall impair or be construed as a waiver of such right or remedy. A 

waiver by either party of any covenant or breach of this Agreement shall not constitute or operate as a 

waiver of any succeeding breach of the covenant or of any other covenant. 

 

(M) Applicable Law. This Agreement is enforceable in the State of South Carolina and shall in 

all respects be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the substantive Federal laws of the United 

States and the laws of the State of South Carolina.  Any claims for default, non-performance or other breach 

shall be filed in Beaufort County, South Carolina. 

 

THIS IS A LEGALLY BINDING AGREEMENT. BOTH RECIPIENT AND PROVIDER SHALL 

SEEK FURTHER ASSISTANCE IF THE CONTENTS ARE NOT UNDERSTOOD. BOTH 

RECIPIENT AND PROVIDER ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS 

AGREEMENT.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and in acknowledgement that the parties hereto have read and understood 

each and every provision hereof, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date first 

written above. 

WITNESSES:      PROVIDER:  

 

 

___________________________________  _____________________________ 

       _____________________________ 

Beaufort County Administrator 

___________________________________ 

 

 

WITNESSES:      RECIPIENT:  

        

___________________________________  _________________________________ 

       (Print Recipient’s Name)____________ 

___________________________________   

58

Item 10.



EXHIBIT A 

 

(Insert Grant Fund Approval) 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Legal Description as provided for in the Warranty Deed recorded in the Beaufort County Register of 

Deeds in Book ____ at Page ____.  

 

(Insert legal description) 

 

Beaufort County Tax Reference: (Insert Tax ID Number) 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

(Insert Agreement between Federal Funding Entity and County)  

 

59

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING FEDERAL FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE REIMBURSABLE GRANT PROGRAMS 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Executive Committee – December 6, 2021 

Presenter Information: 

Pamela Cobb, Disaster Recovery Coordinator – Alternate 

Neil Desai, Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Beaufort County recognizes the need to assist Beaufort County residents with the opportunity to 
federal/state mitigation programs that will assist in mitigating repetitive loss properties in unincorporated 
Beaufort County. Mitigation Grant Programs are provided to authorized applicants to assist in the elevation of 
a residence located in the jurisdiction of unincorporated Beaufort County to reduce or eliminate the risk of 
repetitive flood damage to buildings and structures insurable under the Nation Flood Insurance Program 
(NFIP). 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Beaufort County desires to promote citizen participation by creating a Flood Mitigation Assistance Program 
and permitting grant funds to be reimbursed through this program.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The funding source for this program will come from the general fund. This program requires $750,000 to be 
available in order to initially cover the costs of the citizen’s project, whereby the costs of the project will 
ultimately be reimbursed by the Federal or State entity.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the Resolution to fund the Flood Mitigation Assistance Program.  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve the recommendation of the Resolution to fund the Flood Mitigation Assistance Program. 

Motion to deny the recommendation of the Resolution to fund the Flood Mitigation Assistance Program. 

(Next Steps – Go before full council for determination on Resolution December 13, 2021) 

 

60

Item 11.



A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING FEDERAL FLOOD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE  

REIMBURSABLE GRANT PROGRAMS  

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County (“County”) recognizes the need to provide for and to assist 

with the applications for and distribution of funds from federal programs (“Federal Funding”) for 

the purpose of assisting with the cost to elevate certain structures above the base flood elevation 

which are located in the Special Flood Hazard Area; and    

WHEREAS, the Federal Funding is for the purpose of Flood Mitigation, Hazard 

Mitigation or Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities to assist in the South Carolina’s 

efforts to reduce or eliminate the risk of repetitive flood damage to buildings and structures 

insurable under the National Flood Insurance Program; and  

WHEREAS, when a resident is the fee simple owner of a home in the unincorporated area 

of the County (“Recipient”) and has a need for assistance in the elevation of their home located in 

the Special Flood Hazard Area, then Recipient may be eligible to receive assistance from Federal 

Funding; and 

WHEREAS, when the Federal Funding entity approves Recipient to receive assistance, 

the Federal Funding entity requires that Grant Funds be reimbursed through a government entity; 

and 

WHEREAS, the County is a government entity and desires to promote Recipient 

participation by creating a Flood Mitigation Assistance Program and allocating General Fund 

dollars for the purpose of reimbursing Grant Funds in an amount not to exceed $750,000 at any 

one time; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by Beaufort County Council agrees to 

support federal flood mitigation assistance reimbursable grant programs and allocating General 

Fund dollars in an amount not to exceed $750,000.  

 

ADOPTED this ____ day of ___________ 2021.  

 

     COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

     By: _____________________________________ 

      Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _____________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council  

61

Item 11.



 Quote 154391-02

Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT- 
PUBLIC WORKS & MAINTENANC 
84 SHANKLIN RD 
BEAUFORT, SC 29901 
 
Attention: NEIL DESAI 

November 5, 2021

 
 
 

 
Dear Neil, 
 
We would like to thank you for your interest in our company and our products and are pleased to quote the following for your 
consideration. 
 

One (1) New Cat Model: 120 Motorgraders with all standard equipment in addition to the additional specifications listed 
below: 

 
STOCK NUMBER: M26500               SERIAL NUMBER: 0Y9A00857                YEAR: 2021                 SMU: 22 
 
We wish to thank you for the opportunity of quoting on your equipment needs. This quotation is valid for 30 days, after which time we 
reserve the right to re-quote. If there are any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Wiley Murph 
Machine Sales Representative 
 
STANDARD EQUIPMENT 
 
POWERTRAIN -Air cleaner, dual stage dry type radial -seal with service indicator through -messenger and automatic dust ejector 
-Air-to-air after cooler (ATAAC) -Brakes, oil disc, four-wheel, hydraulic -Demand fan, hydraulic -Differential, lock/unlock, auto -Drain, 
engine oil, ecology -Engine: --C7.1 diesel, with automatic -engine derate, and idle control. --Optimized VHP Plus --Engine ECO mode 
--Fuel-water separator -Parking brake, multi-disc, sealed -and oil cooled -Priming pump, fuel -Transmission, 8 speed forward and 6 
-speed reverse, power shift, direct -drive 
 
ELECTRICAL -Alarm, back-up -Alternator, -Batteries, maintenance free -Electrical system, 24V 
 
OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT -Display, digital speed and gear -Gauge, machine level -Gauges (analog) inside the cab -(includes fuel, 
articulation, engine -coolant temp, engine RPM, and -hydraulic oil temp) -Ladders, cab, left and right side -Message operator 
information display, -meter, hour, digital -ISO 6394 (70% fan speed) -Throttle control, electronic - 
 
SAFETY AND SECURITY -Clutch, circle drive slip -Doors, engine compartment, -Ground level engine shutdown -Seat belt, 
retractable 76.2 (3'') 
 
TIRES, RIMS, AND WHEELS -A partial allowance for tires -on 254mm x 609mm (10''x24'') multi- -piece rims is included in the base 
-machine weight and price 
 
OTHER STANDARD EQUIPMENT -CD ROM parts book -Doors, service compartment, -locking -SOS ports, engine, hydraulic, 
-transmission, coolant, fuel -Tool box -Fuel tank, 225 liters (59 gallon) -Radiator, cleanout access 
 
 
 
 
 

62

Item 13.



 Quote 154391-02

Page 2 of 3 

 

MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS 
Description Reference No List 
120 14B MOTOR GRADER 468-2237    $279,590.00 
HVAC, BASIC,W/O AIR COMPRESSOR 510-8447 $5,900.00 
CAMERA, REAR VISION, LVR 492-0617 $2,665.00 
SEAT COMFORT, SUSPENSION, LVR 461-3554 $2,140.00 
HITCH, TOWING 416-6892 $570.00 
LIGHTS,BRAKE&BKP,TURN,LED 563-2423 $428.00 
ROLL ON-ROLL OFF 0P-2265 $320.00 
DECALS, ENGLISH (U.S) 472-5087 $0.00 
JUMP START STUDS 506-4262 $0.00 
ALTERNATOR, 145 AMP 438-5768 $0.00 
MIRRORS, EXTERNAL, BASE, LVR 483-9353 $0.00 
ANTIFREEZE WINDSHIELD WASHER 0P-1939 $0.00 
FUEL ANTIFREEZE, -25C (-13F) 0P-3978 $0.00 
LANGUAGE, ENGLISH 462-6595 $0.00 
PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR PLE742 491-5100 $0.00 
NO GRADE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY 543-0221 $0.00 
REAR PANEL W/O ACCESS DOOR 518-1195 $0.00 
STARTER, STANDARD DUTY 462-6512 $0.00 
ENGINE, STAGE V AND T4 FINAL 590-7345 $0.00 
DRAIN, GRAVITY, ENGINE OIL 422-6603 $0.00 
NO LOCK OUT 461-3545 $0.00 
GLOBAL ARRANGEMENT LVR 561-9459 $0.00 
MOLDBOARD, 12' BASIC 320-9924 $0.00 
WEATHER, STANDARD TND 467-7404 $0.00 
NO ACCUMULATORS, NO ARO, LVR 465-4422 $0.00 
FUEL FILTER, NEXT GEN 574-8803 $0.00 
GROUND LEVEL, FUELING 577-8014 $0.00 
FAN, STANDARD TND 575-7683 $0.00 
SEAT BELT 594-6359 ($214.00) 
DRAWBAR, STANDARD,HYD TIP, LVR 579-6849 ($1,630.00) 
CAB, ROPS, BASE, LVR, TND 461-3561 $19,300.00 
TIRES,14.0R24 MX XGLA2 * G2 SP 254-7904 $7,600.00 
COMFORT PACKAGE, PREMIUM, LVR 471-5352 $3,005.00 
BASE + 2 (TIP, MMS) LVR 468-2247 $2,970.00 
LIGHTS, WORKING,BASIC HAL,LVR 468-7618 $805.00 
HIGH BAR, HALOGEN, LVR, TND 573-6437 $675.00 

TOTAL LIST PRICE  $324,124.00 

 
SELL PRICE                                                                                                                                                                       
 
STATE CONTRACT 4400025395 SELL PRICE 

$240,994.00 
 

$194,274.23 

EXT WARRANTY Included 

NET BALANCE DUE $194,274.23 

SC SALES TAX $500.00 

AFTER TAX BALANCE $194,774.23 

 

63

Item 13.



 Quote 154391-02

Page 3 of 3 

 

WARRANTY 
Standard Warranty: 12 MONTHS UNLIMITED 

Extended Warranty: 120-60 MO/5000 HR POWERTRAIN 

  

 
 
 
 
 
Accepted by___________________________________ on ____________________  
 
                                                                              ______________________________ 
                                                                                           Signature 
 

64

Item 13.



SALES AGREEMENT DATE Nov 05, 2021

Blanchard Machinery Co., 3151 Charleston Highway, Columbia, SC29202-7517 Phone: (803) 791-7100

S
O
L
D

T
O

PURCHASER BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT-

STREET ADDRESS 84 SHANKLIN RD PO DRAWER 1228

CITY/STATE BEAUFORT, SC COUNTY BEAUFORT

POSTAL CODE 29901 PHONE NO. 843 255 2801

CUSTOMER CONTACT:
EQUIPMENT Neil Desai

PRODUCT SUPPORT Neil Desai

INDUSTRY CODE: COUNTY GOVERNMENT(PS92) PRINCIPAL WORK CODE

S
H
I
P

T
O

<SAME>

F.O.B. AT:

CUSTOMER 0486000
Sales Tax Exemption # (if applicable) CUSTOMER PO NUMBER

NUMBER N/A

T
E
R
M
S

PAYMENT TERMS: (All terms and payments are subject to Finance Company - OAC approval)

NET PAYMENT ON RECEIPT OF INVOICE NET ON DELIVERY FINANCIAL SERVICES CSC LEASE

CASH WITH ORDER $0.00 BALANCE TO FINANCE 0.00 CONTRACT INTEREST RATE 0.00

PAYMENT PERIOD PAYMENT AMOUNT 0.00 NUMBER OF PAYMENTS 0 OPTIONAL BUY-OUT

DESCRIPTION OF EQUIPMENT ORDERED / PURCHASED

MAKE: CAT MODEL: 120 YEAR: 2021

STOCK NUMBER: M26500 SERIAL NUMBER: 0Y9A00857

120 14B MOTOR GRADER 468-2237 ALTERNATOR, 145 AMP 438-5768 ENGINE, STAGE V AND T4 FINAL 590-7345

HVAC, BASIC,W/O AIR COMPRESSOR 510-8447 MIRRORS, EXTERNAL, BASE, LVR 483-9353 DRAIN, GRAVITY, ENGINE OIL 422-6603

CAMERA, REAR VISION, LVR 492-0617 ANTIFREEZE WINDSHIELD WASHER 0P-1939 NO LOCK OUT 461-3545

SEAT COMFORT, SUSPENSION, LVR 461-3554 FUEL ANTIFREEZE, -25C (-13F) 0P-3978 GLOBAL ARRANGEMENT LVR 561-9459

HITCH, TOWING 416-6892 LANGUAGE, ENGLISH 462-6595 MOLDBOARD, 12' BASIC 320-9924

LIGHTS,BRAKE&BKP,TURN,LED 563-2423 PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR PLE742 491-5100 WEATHER, STANDARD TND 467-7404

ROLL ON-ROLL OFF 0P-2265 NO GRADE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY 543-0221 NO ACCUMULATORS, NO ARO, LVR 465-4422

DECALS, ENGLISH (U.S) 472-5087 REAR PANEL W/O ACCESS DOOR 518-1195 FUEL FILTER, NEXT GEN 574-8803

JUMP START STUDS 506-4262 STARTER, STANDARD DUTY 462-6512 GROUND LEVEL, FUELING 577-8014
TRADE-IN EQUIPMENT

MODEL: YEAR: SN.:

PAYOUT TO: AMOUNT: PAID BY:

MODEL: YEAR: SN.:

PAYOUT TO: AMOUNT: PAID BY:

MODEL: YEAR: SN.:

PAYOUT TO: AMOUNT: PAID BY:

MODEL: YEAR: SN.:

PAYOUT TO: AMOUNT: PAID BY:

ALL TRADES-INS ARE SUBJECT TO EQUIPMENT BEING IN "AS INSPECTED CONDITION" BY VENDOR AT TIME OF DELIVERY
OF REPLACEMENT MACHINE PURCHASE ABOVE.

PURCHASER HEREBY SELLS THE TRADE-IN EQUIPMENT DESCRIBED ABOVE TO THE VENDOR AND WARRANTS IT TO BE
FREE AND CLEAR OF ALL CLAIMS, LIENS, MORTGAGES AND SECURITY INTEREST EXCEPT AS SHOWN ABOVE.

SELL PRICE $194,274.23

EXT WARRANTY Included

NET BALANCE DUE $194,274.23

SC SALES TAX $500.00

AFTER TAX BALANCE $194,774.23

CATERPILLAR
EQUIPMENT
WARRANTY

INITIAL

The customer acknowledges that he has received a copy of the Blanchard Machinery Company/Caterpillar Warranty and has read and
understood said warranty. Scheduled oil sampling (S.O.S.) is mandatory with this warranty. The customer is responsible for taking oil
samples at designated intervals from all power train components and failure to do so may result in voiding the warranty.
Warranty applicable including experation date where necessary:
12 MONTHS UNLIMMITED

120-60 MO/5000 HR POWERTRAIN, 12 MONTH UNLIMITED

USED EQUIPMENT

WARRANTY
INITIAL

All used equipment is sold as is where is and no warranty is offered or implied except as
specified here:

Warranty applicable:

CSA:

NOTES:

THIS AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS ON THE REVERSE
BLANCHARD MACHINERY COMPANY

ORDER RECEIVED BY Wiley Murph RepSign
REPRESENTATIVE

PURCHASER

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED ON

BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT- CustomerSign

PURCHASER

BY
SIGNATURE

TITLE

65

Item 13.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Binding Agreement. By executing this Sales Agreement (the “Agreement”), Purchaser agrees to purchase from Blanchard Machinery the equipment and attachments described on the face hereof (collectively referred

to herein as the “Equipment”) pursuant to the terms and conditions specified in this Agreement.

2. Purchase of Equipment. Blanchard Machinery Company (“Blanchard Machinery”) shall have no obligation to fulfill timely orders for Equipment which are out-of-stock or otherwise unavailable, but Blanchard Machinery

will promptly notify you of such unavailability or delay as soon as Blanchard Machinery becomes aware of it. Any terms and conditions contained in Purchaser’s documents that are different or in addition to the terms and

conditions herein, including but not limited to letters, purchase orders, or sales acknowledgements, are hereby rejected by Blanchard Machinery, are not a part of this Agreement, and shall be of no effect or binding upon

Blanchard Machinery unless specifically agreed to in writing by an authorized officer of Blanchard Machinery. Failure by Blanchard Machinery specifically to object to provisions contained in such documents shall not in

any way be deemed an alteration to or waiver of these terms and conditions.

3. Price and Other Expenses. All prices set forth on the face of this Agreement are the purchase prices of the Equipment. Purchaser shall be responsible for all expenses relating to the Equipment purchased including but

not limited to (a) any federal, state, local, foreign or provincial taxes or tariffs, now or hereafter enacted, applicable to the Equipment, as further set forth in Section 7, below; (b) standard shipping or other special

transportation costs to the point of delivery specified by Purchaser; (c) all charges in the event payment from Purchaser is delinquent, including, without limitation, all costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, of

collecting any amount not paid when due hereunder; and (d) all other expenses, not included in the sale and delivery contemplated above, of whatever kind or nature, relating to special insurance requirements, the

purchase, shipment, transportation, or delivery of Equipment.

4. Equipment Delivery. Unless otherwise agreed, all shipments will be made by third-party carriers chosen by Blanchard Machinery or its designees, at costs, tariffs and other charges, and in accordance with terms and

conditions established by Blanchard Machinery and its designees from time to time.

5. Risk of Loss. The risk of loss associated with any Equipment and title passes to Purchaser upon delivery of the goods to the shipping point, FOB, subject to the reservation of a security interest to Blanchard Machinery

in Section 6 of this Agreement. Blanchard Machinery shall have no liability of any kind or nature, whether for consequential or other damages for any reason whatsoever, relating to shipment of Equipment purchased by

Purchaser, including but not limited to damage to the Equipment, taxes, duties, loss, theft or any illness of or personal injury to any person or property under any environmental, health or safety law.

6. Payment and Credit. Purchaser shall pay for all Equipment in accordance with payment terms set forth on the face of this Agreement. Purchaser’s right to purchase any Equipment is conditioned upon approval of

Purchaser’s credit and may be withdrawn or amended at any time by Blanchard Machinery in its sole discretion. Purchaser understands and agrees that the late fee is subject to adjustment by Blanchard Machinery. The

late fee schedule is subject to change at discretion of Blanchard Machinery. The late fee schedule is as follows: $5 fee for past due balances of $350 to $1,000; $15 fee for $1,001 to $2,000; $30 fee for $2,001 to $3,000;

$45 fee for $3,001 to $5,000; $75 fee for $5,001 to $10,000; $150 fee for $10,001 to $20,000; $300 fee for $20,001 to $50,000; $700 fee for $50,001 to $75,000; and $1,100 fee for $75,001 to $100,000; $1,500 fee for

$100,001 to $200,000; $3,000 fee for $200,001 to $300,000; $4,500 fee for $300,001 to $500,000; $7,500 fee for $500,001 and above. In the event Purchaser is delinquent, Purchaser shall pay all costs of collection,

including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees. Should Purchaser become delinquent in the payment of any sum due under this Agreement, all contractual or other obligations of Blanchard Machinery to Purchaser

shall terminate without further notice to Purchaser. Blanchard Machinery retains, and Purchaser hereby grants Blanchard Machinery, a purchase money security interest in the Equipment, including all accessions to and

replacements of them, to secure the payment of the purchase price of the Equipment, until Purchaser has made payment in full in accordance with the terms hereof, and Purchaser shall cooperate fully with Blanchard

Machinery in executing such documents, including a Uniform Commercial Code financing statement, and accomplishing such filings and/or recordings thereof as Blanchard Machinery deems necessary for the perfection,

protection and enforcement of such security interest.

7. Taxes and Other Charges. Purchaser is responsible for the payment of all federal, state, local, foreign, or provincial taxes (now or hereafter enacted), fees, or charges which may be assessed or levied now or hereafter

on or on account of materials sold hereunder to Purchaser. Published prices do not include such taxes, which may be added by Blanchard Machinery to the invoice where Blanchard Machinery has a legal obligation to

collect them. When Purchaser claims that this transaction is not subject to any such tax, or that Purchaser is exempt, or that Blanchard Machinery is not required to collect such tax, Purchaser agrees to provide Blanchard

Machinery with any documentation necessary to support such a claim and to allow Blanchard Machinery to document its decision not to collect tax(es).

8. Acceptance; Non-Conforming Equipment; Sole Remedy. Purchaser agrees to accept all Equipment upon delivery to Purchaser where the Equipment is in material conformity with Blanchard Machinery's or the

applicable manufacturer's published description or specifications of such Equipment. In any event, Equipment shall be deemed automatically, irrevocably and conclusively accepted without defects when Purchaser has

had possession of the Equipment for five (5) days and has failed to notify Blanchard Machinery that the Equipment has been rejected and the reasons for such rejection. Purchaser’s sole remedy hereunder for Blanchard

Machinery's failure to deliver Equipment in material conformity with applicable published description or specifications of such Equipment shall be, at Blanchard Machinery's option, the replacement of such non-conforming

Equipment with conforming Equipment, or refund of the applicable purchase price paid therefore.

9. Purchaser Representations and Covenants. Purchaser shall be solely responsible for the use and disposition of the Equipment, including, without limitation, the obtaining of all permits, licenses or certificates required

for the use thereof. Purchaser agrees to use the Equipment only in accordance with all laws, rules and regulations applicable thereto.

10. Indemnification. Purchaser shall indemnify, defend, and hold Blanchard Machinery harmless from any and all liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, or suits of whatever nature including, but not limited to,

attorneys' fees and litigation expenses, arising from any: (a) breach by Purchaser of any representation or covenant made by Purchaser under this Agreement; (b) breach by Purchaser of any provision of this Agreement;

(c) failure of Purchaser to comply with applicable environmental, health and safety laws; and (d) any use by Purchaser or third parties of the Equipment sold to Purchaser. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchaser shall not

be liable to Blanchard Machinery for any portion of such liabilities that result from Blanchard Machinery’s fraud, bad faith, or willful misconduct.

11. Equipment Warranties. Some Equipment may come with limited warranties. Purchaser may obtain a copy of the applicable equipment warranty by contacting Blanchard Machinery. EXCEPT FOR THE

AFOREMENTIONED LIMITED WARRANTIES OF VARIOUS EQUIPMENT, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, BLANCHARD MACHINERY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES, WHETHER ORAL OR WRITTEN, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING (WITHOUT LIMITATION) ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES AS TO MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS

FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH RESPECT TO THE EQUIPMENT.

12. Limitations on Liability. IN NO EVENT SHALL BLANCHARD MACHINERY BE LIABLE FOR LOSS OF PROFITS, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF ANY

BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT OR OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, AND IN NO EVENT SHALL THE LIABILITY OF BLANCHARD MACHINERY EXCEED THE UNIT PRICE OF THE DEFECTIVE

EQUIPMENT. ANY ACTION BY PURCHASER UNDER OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL COMMENCE WITHIN TWELVE (12) MONTHS AFTER SUCH CAUSE OF ACTION ACCRUED. BLANCHARD

MACHINERY’S LIABILITY SHALL BE LIMITED AS SET FORTH HEREIN AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT.

13. Force Majeure. Blanchard Machinery shall not be responsible for any failure to perform the contract formed hereunder due to causes beyond its control, including, but not limited to, acts of God, pandemics, labor

disputes or shortages, acts or omissions of buyer, government or judicial authorities, or military authorities, delays in transportation, or inability to obtain necessary materials or supplies, all whether foreseen or unforeseen.

14. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina, without regard to the choice of law provisions thereof. Any dispute or claim relating to

or arising out of or in connection with this Agreement shall be finally settled by binding arbitration in Lexington County, South Carolina using the then current rules and procedures of the American Arbitration Association.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall preclude either party from seeking injunctive relief in any state or federal court of competent jurisdiction in Lexington County, South Carolina without first complying with

the arbitration provisions of this Section, and each party hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of state and federal courts in Lexington County, South Carolina for such purpose.

15. Product Link. In the event any portion of the Equipment is equipped with Product Link, Customer understands data concerning this Equipment, its condition, and its operation is being transmitted by Product Link to

Caterpillar and/or its dealers to better serve Customer and to improve upon Caterpillar products and services. The information transmitted may include: machine serial number, machine location, and operational data,

including but not limited to: fault codes, emissions data, fuel usage, service meter hours, software and hardware version numbers, and installed attachments. Caterpillar will not sell or rent collected information to any other

third party and will exercise reasonable efforts to keep the information secure. Caterpillar Inc. recognizes and respects customer privacy. Customer agrees to allow this data to be accessed by Caterpillar and/or its dealers.

16. Complete Agreement; Severability; Non-Waiver; No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between Purchaser and Blanchard Machinery with respect to the purchase of

Equipment, superseding all prior written and oral communications and understandings. If any provisions or portion of this Agreement is not given legal effect by a court of competent jurisdiction, such provisions or portions

shall drop out of this Agreement and the remaining provisions and portions of this Agreement shall be construed and enforced. This Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to confer any rights or remedies upon

any third parties. Blanchard Machinery’s failure to exercise any of its rights for any period shall not constitute or be deemed a waiver or forfeiture of such rights.

This instrument shall not become effective or binding upon Lessor until executed by an authorized representative of Lessor.

Customer Initials:_____________________________ Date:_________________________

66

Item 13.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

 DECEMBER 6, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN SOMMERVILLE  

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

APPOINTMENT OF CAROLYN M. BANNER, Ph.D. TO BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
WITH AN EXPIRATION DATE OF 2025. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

APPROVE, MODIFY OR REJECT 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

MOTION TO (APPROVE, MODIFY, REJECT) APPOINTMENT FOR CAROLYN M. BANNER, Ph.D. TO BEAUFORT 
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES. 

 APPOINTMENT OF CAROLYN M. BANNER, Ph.D 

• (1st TERM) TO BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
• (3) - 4 YEAR TERMS = 12 YEARS

 

67

Item 14.



��������	
�����	������
����������	������������������������� ���� �!"#$%	&�%%�!&��'("!�	 "'%�$	)"��!	*�+,-�!��,"%	�'�.�! /00'1��,"%2!"(�--"!23"%�	45"��6 23"%�	4/((,0�6 7��,#5"��	899!�-- ,�$&78:;/*< =����= >,1	 "9��??�@A�,#,%+	899!�-- ,�$&78:;/*< =����= >,1	 "9��??�@�,-�!,0� 7�3%,0,�$8(!,0�%	8��!,0�%2!�-�%�#$	=�!B,%+	"%	�	&"�!9�8+�%0$� "��,--,"%�8'�3"!,�$	"!	 "��,����CD�- �"E(	D�-F	G3��	,-	�3�	%���	"(	�3�	."�!9	�%9	G3�%	9"�-	��!�	�H1,!�C&��'("!�	I�-1�!	5,+3�!	79'0��,"%	 "��,--,"%JJJI'%�	�����K�LMN	�OM	
KPPQNNQKONR��	RS���	T���������U	2#��-�	,%9,0���	.$	1#�0,%+	�	V�VF	V�VF	"!	VWV	�#"%+-,9�	$"'!	03",0�-X800"�"9��,"%-	<�H	4�Y	=����68,!1"!�-
68

Item 14.



����������	�
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!��" ���������#��������$������������������!������%����������%�����������&����#�������������������'������(�)��������������	*�����������	��������
�����+���%���
�����,�(��!
 -���������
�(��������������������
69

Item 14.



���������	
���
����
����
����������
������
���������������������������
������������������� �!����������������
���
"����# ��������������
�����$�����%����������������&
�����'����������
���(��)��
��* ���+������������
�������
�&�,������������
�
������������������
�� )�������
�� �
��� ���
���	
���
��� ��
��-�������������
�& ���)������������������������
���������
�
��
�� ���%������.���&�%����/�
�
��
70

Item 14.



������ ���	
�����	�����������������������	����������������������	���������������� !"�#����$�%"�&�''�$����#�#�"�(�!�#)�(�!�*�'����$��"������)�!%� !$'�+�*$#�����$�,�"-."%�"�*"�+�%�#�"�/'$�����(�00�������1$*$�*)2/'"$�"�"-.'$���&�)�)�!�&$�#�#���"%1"����#�"�/'$������(�00������2
3�$#� !$'�+�*$#����4�"-."%�"�*"�$�,�"-."%#��"�0$5"�)�!�$����,�*$�,�,$#"�+�%�#�"�/'$������(�00������6
3�$#�%�'"�,��)�!�+""'�#�"�/'$������(�00�������.'$)�����0$5����7"$!+�%#�(�!�#)�$�,"��%$8'"�*�00!��#)����&��*��#��'�1"�$�,�&�%56
3�$#�,��)�!�8"'�"1"�$%"�#�"�0��#��0.�%#$�#�.'$���������!"��+$*����#�"�(�!�#)�,!%����#�"��"-#�+�1"�)"$%�6

71

Item 14.



��������	
��������
�������	����������
����	
�������������
�������

�����
	���������������������
�������
��������������������������
�������

���
����������������������� ���������������
�!�!
�������!"!��#$�%&'�(")$)*$++,$')*����

72

Item 14.



73

Item 14.



74

Item 14.



 Carolyn M. Banner 

Wor

 

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE 

 

 Over twenty years’ experience in education: administration, counseling, teaching and 

program design. 

 Extensive work with diverse population, minorities, non-traditional students and the 

academically challenged. 

 Extensive background in counseling, instructing and program development. 

 Self-motivated and ability to work independently and coordinate with others. 

      

EDUCATION 

 

 Walden University, Minneapolis, Minnesota 

 Ph.D., Education 

 

 University of South Carolina, Columbia, SC 

 M.P.H., Health Education 

 

 Voorhees College, Denmark, SC 

 B.S., Biology 

  

 Harvard University, Cambridge, MA 

 Summer Institute 

 

PROFESSIONAL SKILLS 

 

SUPERVISON AND ADMINISTRATION 

 

 Coordinated, recruit and market the University of South Carolina-Columbia distance 

education graduate programs to district superintendents and businesses in Beaufort, 

Charleston, Walterboro and Myrtle Beach. 

  Developed and negotiated contracts with school districts for undergraduate and 

graduate courses. 

 Recruited and hired faculty for on site graduate courses. 

 Directed the planning, development and supervision of the College Assessment and 

Testing Program, Job Placement, and off - campus student services. 

 Administered career planning assessment instruments. (Myers Briggs, SDS, Kuder, 

Strong Campbell, CAPS)  

 Coordinated and plan special activities and events for students (New Student 

Orientation, Career Fairs) 

 Compiled and analyzed statistical data to document program performance. 

 Wrote quarterly and final program evaluations reports. 

 Developed and managed program budgets; monitor program expenditures for 

adherence to College and Federal guidelines; responsible for over $200,000 annually. 

 Assisted with Student Appeals cases. 

 Directed the Single Parent/Homemaker Program and Gender Equity Program to 

include scheduling and coordinating all activities specified in the grant proposal. 

75

Item 14.



 2 

 

 

LEADERSHIP 

 

 Represented USC Extended Campus at local and state meetings. 

 Represented USC Extended Campus at corporate and colleges/universities career fairs. 

 Conducted needs assessment to determine program need for program expansion. 

 Coordinated and planned special activities and events for students (New Student 

Orientation, Career Fairs) 

 Developed, planned and taught the first College Orientation course for new students 

 Designed a career-planning program for middle and high school students entitled, 

“Careers and Choices;” program was implemented in 8 high schools. 

 Directed the new service delivery system into one-stop concept; recognized by the 

National Council of Student Development as an exemplary program. 

 Wrote annual grant proposals; successfully received funding each year. 

 Planned and organized state conference for counselors in the SC Technical College 

system; over 100 individuals participated. 

 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 Presented informational sessions to local groups on USC Extended Campus programs. 

 Advised distance education students and assisted with online registration. 

 Conducted over 100 workshops on career planning, study skills, and women health 

issues.  Frequent guest speaker to various community agencies. 

 Published articles in professional journal and newsletter. 

 Taught on the college level for 8 years. 

 Taught a graduate credit course for Coastal Carolina University. 

 One of 6 instructors featured on CD-ROM’s developed by the South Carolina 

Department of Education for statewide distribution on career planning issues.  

 Coordinated professional training for Student Services staff. 

 

COUNSELING AND INTERVIEWING 

 

 Provided crisis intervention and referral for college students. 

 Conducted intake interviews and develop individual career plans for students. 

 Provided academic, career, and personal counseling to new and continuing students. 

 Faculty advisor for Career Development students. 

 Administered career planning assessment instruments. 

 Provided group-counseling activities, and test interpretation. 

 Advised and register high school students for college courses. 

 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND TRAINING 

 

 Served as agency liaison to high school schools and various community organizations. 

 Organized and coordinate training sessions for staff and community members. 

 Designed and conduct informational workshops on numerous career development 

issues. 

 Managed, plan, develop and implement programs and services that guide new and 

enrolled students. 

 Scheduled and coordinate retention activities. 

 Coordinated and organize orientation program for new students. 

 Scheduled and conduct career planning and employability skills workshops. 

76

Item 14.



 3 

 

 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

 

Adjunct Faculty (2008-Current) 

 

Director, Opportunity Scholars Program  (2009- 2016) 

 
Director/Adjunct Faculty (2004-2008) 

University of South Carolina-Extended Campus- Coastal Region 

Beaufort, SC 

 

Director of Student Services (1988 - 2004) 

Technical College of the Lowcountry, Beaufort, SC 

 

Director of Career Planning and Job Placement (1987 - 1988) 

Technical College of the Lowcountry, Beaufort, SC 

 

New Horizons Coordinator (1986 - 1987) 

Technical College of the Lowcountry, Beaufort, SC 

 

District Director of Health Education (1984 - 1986) 

Department of Health and Environmental Control, Orangeburg, SC 

 

Executive Director (1983 - 1984) 

Columbia Free Clinic, Columbia, SC 

 

Director of Counseling (1981 - 1983) 

Women's Medical Clinic, Washington, DC 

 

Health Educator (1979 - 1981) 

Urban Health Center, Savannah, GA 

 

CONSULTATION 

 

Kennesaw State University, Instructor, 2001-2002 

                        Options Resource Outplacement Services, Consultant, 1995-1996 

South Carolina Alliance of Tech Prep/STW, 2003 

 

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 

 

National Council of Instructional Administrators 

Leadership Beaufort 

South Carolina Placement Association 

South Carolina Counseling Association 

South Carolina Women Work 

National Council of Student Development 

National Career Development Association 

 

HONORS & AWARDS 

 

Leaders for Change, National Institute for Leadership Development 

Educator of the Year-Administrator/Manager Category 

77

Item 14.



 4 
Leadership Beaufort 

Chair, SC Technical College Counseling Peer Group 

Certified Career Development Facilitator Instructor 

Master Career Development Professional 

 

 

TEACHING 

 

Personal and Community Health (HPEB 321) 

University 101-Student in the Unviversity 

Health Education for the Elementary School (HPEDA 331) 

 

 

COMPUTER SKILLS 

 

Microsoft Word 

Microsoft Excel 

Microsoft PowerPoint 

Social Media 

 

 

78

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

 DECEMBER 6, 2021

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN SOMMERVILLE  

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

APPOINTMENT OF ANGELA SIMMONS, Ph.D. TO BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
WITH AN EXPIRATION DATE OF 2023. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

APPROVE, MODIFY OR REJECT 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

MOTION TO (APPROVE, MODIFY, REJECT) APPOINTMENT FOR ANGELA SIMMONS, Ph.D. TO BEAUFORT 
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES. 

 APPOINTMENT OF ANGELA SIMMONS, Ph.D 

• PARTIAL (1st TERM) TO BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

79

Item 15.



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
County Boards, Agencies, Commissions, Authorities and Committees 

County Council of Beaufort County selects citizens for service on Council appointed Boards, Agencies, Commissions, Authorities and Committees 
from a roster of individuals who have either volunteered or have been recommended for appointment.  The Clerk to Council uses this form to keep 
an up-to-date roster of volunteers and to provide Council basic information about each volunteer. 

    

 

Top Three Priorities: Please indicate by placing a “1”, 
“2”, or “3” alongside your choices.  

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

 Accommodations Tax (2% State) 
 Airports  
 Alcohol and Drug Abuse  

____ Assessment Appeals 
____ Beaufort County Transportation  
____ Beaufort-Jasper Economic Opportunity 

 Beaufort-Jasper Water & Sewer  
 Beaufort Memorial Hospital 
 Bluffton Township Fire 
 Burton Fire  
 Coastal Zone Management Appellate  (inactive) 
 Construction Adjustments and Appeals  
 Daufuskie Island Fire 
 Design Review 

____ Disabilities and Special Needs 
____ Economic Development Corporation 

 Forestry (inactive) 
         Historic Preservation Review 
____ Keep Beaufort County Beautiful 

 Lady's Island / St. Helena Island Fire 
 Library  
 Lowcountry Council of Governments 
 Lowcountry Regional Transportation Authority 
 Parks and Recreation 
 Planning * 
 Rural and Critical Lands Preservation 
 Sheldon Fire 
 Social Services (inactive) 
 Solid Waste and Recycling 
 Southern Beaufort County Corridor Beautification 
 Stormwater Management Utility  
 Zoning  

DATE:   NAME:       

BEAUFORT COUNTY VOTER REGISTRATION NUMBER: ___________________  

OCCUPATION: _____________________________________________ 

TELEPHONE: (Home) (Office)  EMAIL: 

HOME ADDRESS:  STATE:  ZIP CODE: 

MAILING ADDRESS:  STATE:  ZIP CODE: 

COUNTY COUNCIL DISTRICT:       1     2   3  4    5     6   7      8    9     10     11 

ETHNICITY:         Caucasian           African American          Other 

Are you presently serving on a Board, Agency, Commission, Authority or Committee?         Yes  No 

If “yes”, what is the name of the board and when does term expire? 

• Please return completed form and a brief resume’ either Email or U.S. Mail:
o Email:   boardsandcommissions@bcgov.net
o U.S. Mail:   Clerk to Council, County Council of Beaufort County, P.O. Drawer 1228, Beaufort, SC 29901

• Applications without a brief resume’ cannot be considered.
• Applications will be held three (3) years for consideration.
• All information contained on this application is subject to public disclosure.

YOU MUST BE A BEAUFORT COUNTY REGISTERED VOTER TO APPLY 
YOU MUST ATTACH YOUR RESUME’ WITH THIS APPLICATION TO BE CONSIDERED 

An incomplete application will be returned 

* Anyone submitting an application to serve on the Planning Commission must fill out the
questionnaire on page 2.

Applicant’s Signature: 

10/27/21 Angela Denise Simmons

1

SC

SC

29910

29910

2

Higher Education Adminstration/Vice Chancellor at USCB

Submit by Email80

Item 15.

http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/airports-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/alcohol-and-drug-abuse-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/beaufort-jasper-economic-opportunity-authority/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/beaufort-jasper-water-and-sewer-authority/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/beaufort-memorial-hospital-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/bluffton-township-fire-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/burton-fire-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/coastal-zone-management-appellare-panel/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/construction-adjustments-and-appeals-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/daufuskie-island-fire-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/disabilities-and-special-needs-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/forestry-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/historic-preservation-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/ladys-island-fire-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/library-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/lowcountry-council-of-governments/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/lowcountry-regional-transportation-authority/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/parks-and-leisure-services-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/planning-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/rural-and-critical-lands-preservation-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/sheldon-township-fire-commission/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/social-services/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/solid-waste-and-recycle-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/southern-beaufort-median-beautification/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/stormwater-management-utility-board/index.php
http://www.bcgov.net/departments/Administrative/beaufort-county-council/boards-and-commissions/council-appointed/board-list/zoning-appeals-board/index.php
mailto:boardsandcommissions@bcgov.net


81

Item 15.



82

Item 15.



ANGELA D. SIMMONS 
 

 

 
 

 

EDUCATION 
 

Doctor of Education, Higher Education  

Florida State University  

Dissertation: The impact of long-term study abroad on the development of emotional-social intelligence in 

undergraduates 

  

Master of Science, Counselor Education  

Concentration in Student Development in Higher Education  

Mississippi State University  

  

Bachelor of Science, Educational Psychology  

Minor in Counselor Education  

Mississippi State University 
 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPERIENCE 
 

Vice Chancellor for Student Development 
University of South Carolina Beaufort 

December 2019 – Present 

▪ Serve as a cabinet member reporting directly to the Chancellor at USCB, a public university with 

over 2,000 students, 30 academic programs and majors, and three campuses.  

▪ Provide leadership and oversight for the Division of Student Development, which is charged with 

supporting the holistic well-being of students. These areas include: Academic Advising, Academic 

Support, Counseling & Accessibility Services, Career Service & Internships, Student Life, and 

Housing & Judicial Affairs.  

▪ Provide direct supervision to the assistant vice chancellor of student development, a team of six 

department directors, and an administrative assistant. 

▪ Oversee the retention efforts of the university, including using data and analysis to work with 

faculty and staff on the development and implementation of a retention plan that specifies 

effective retention and success initiatives.  

▪ Partner with the Provost & Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs to oversee the diversity, inclusion, 

and equity efforts of the university, including creating long-term strategies and collaborations 

designed to enhance the campus climate for historically marginalized students and employees.   

▪ Co-chair the Public Health Team Committee charged with leading the university’s COVID-19 

response, including developing the Return to Work and Return to Campus plans and managing 

the daily quarantine/isolation and education efforts.  

  

Assistant Vice President for Student Affairs 
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University, Blacksburg, VA 

August 2014 – November 2019 

▪ Served as a senior administrator reporting directly to the Vice President for Student Affairs in a 

division with 24 departments and an annual budget of over $150 million at a land grant 

university with a student population of approximately 31,000 undergraduate and graduate 

students.  

▪ Provided leadership and oversight for areas charged with facilitating student learning through co-

curricular engagement including; Cultural and Community Centers, First Generation Student 

Support, New Student and Family Programs, Student Engagement and Campus Life, and VT 

Engage: The Community Learning Collaborative with over 80 full and part-time employees and 

200 student staff. 

▪ Provided direct supervision for a team of four department directors, a program director, and an 

associate director for finance. 

83

Item 15.



Angela D. Simmons, pg. 2 

 

▪ Managed and allocated budgets in excess of $16 million that were derived from multiple sources, 

including state appropriations, student fees, self-generated revenue, grant funding, and donor 

contributions. 

▪ Provided direction and oversight in the management of four campus facilities with an annual 

visitor rate of approximately 1.5 million. 
 

Key Accomplishments 

▪ Co-Chaired the New Student Transition Strategy Team charged with coordinating the collaborative 

efforts between the Division of Student Affairs, Undergraduate Academic Affairs, and Enrollment 

Management related to the transition of all new students. 

▪ Served as the Division of Student Affair’s representative on the University Strategic Planning 

Advisory Committee, including service as a member of the Vision and Mission Subcommittee.  

▪ Served as the Division of Student Affair’s representative on Inclusive VT, the university’s senior 

representatives who serve as liaisons between colleges/management areas and the Office of 

Inclusion and Diversity. 

▪ Chaired the Division of Student Affairs Inclusive VT Catalysts, a committee that supports progress 

on inclusion and diversity issues, sponsors programming, and recognizes significant contributions 

by faculty, staff, and students. 

▪ Served as a member of the Beyond Boundaries university visioning committee on the Preparing 

Students for the World thematic area. 

▪ Served on the Campus Master Plan Committee, including membership on the Student Life 

Stakeholder Committee. 

▪ Co-Chaired the Student Engagement in the Arts research project aimed at understanding how 

and why students engage in curricular and co-curricular art’s initiatives. 

▪ Co-Chaired the Student Engagement in Athletic Events Committee charged with increasing 

student participation at non-ticketed athletic events.  

▪ Co-Chaired the Student Affairs Diversity and Inclusion Strategic Plan Committee charged with 

creating a comprehensive student affair’s strategic plan to support the university’s ongoing 

efforts related to diversity and inclusion. 

▪ Initiated and managed organizational change related to the consolidation of two departments; 

the Leadership Education Collaborative and VT Engage. 

▪ Provided oversight for a major capital project; Commonwealth Ballroom renovation ($3M) and 

numerous small-scale building renovation projects. 

▪ Co-led a group of 15 students on a cultural exchange program to South Africa to study the 

connections between apartheid and racial segregation in America. 

▪ Provided leadership and oversight in the creation and/or enhancement of learning-centered 

programs for students, including; Welcome Week, Student Engagement Ambassadors, the 

creation of additional cultural and community centers, and expanded international service 

opportunities for students. 

▪ Coordinated and facilitated two international orientation programs in China for students and their 

family members.  
 

Director of Student Conduct 
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University, Blacksburg, VA 

August 2012 – August 2014 

▪ Oversaw the general operation of the office and the adjudication of non-academic student 

misconduct. 

▪ Represented the office of Student Conduct in departmental, divisional, and university wide 

meetings and committees. 

▪ Interacted with parents, legal counsel, the news media, referral agents and charged students who 

are connected with student disciplinary matters on campus.  

▪ Engaged students in intentional conversations that promote interpersonal awareness, purposeful 

actions, self-reflection, community commitment, and civility. 

▪ Supervised four professional team members and oversaw the supervision of a full-time Office 

Manager, Case Manager, and graduate assistant. 

▪ Counseled individual students (both respondents and complainants) regarding their procedural 

guarantees and responsibilities.   

84

Item 15.



Angela D. Simmons, pg. 3 

 

▪ Administered the management, creation and maintenance of conduct records in accordance with 

applicable university policies and state/federal laws.  

▪ Created, implemented, and maintained the mission, purpose, strategic vision, and student 

learning outcomes for the office. 

▪ Certified authorized disclosure of student’s disciplinary histories to employers and professional 

schools within the applicable confines of Federal privacy laws. 

▪ Fostered a positive working relationship with and served as liaison to on and off-campus units. 

▪ Resolved student conduct violations through informal resolution or case adjudication, and issued 

sanctions ranging from formal warning through dismissal from the university. 
 

Key Accomplishments 

▪ Integrated adaptable conflict resolution into the Student Code of Conduct and facilitated the 

approval of the new policy through university governance, including the Board of Visitors. 

▪ Served as a member of the university’s Care Team and supported the Senior Associate Vice 

President for Student Affairs in the Threat Assessment Team’s assessment, intervention, and 

monitoring efforts. 

▪ Facilitated training sessions for Appellate Officers, Peer Advisors, Student Conduct Committees, 

Orientation Leaders, and other university community members.  

▪ Participated in training sessions for Housing and Residence Life professional, graduate and 

undergraduate staff.  

▪ Facilitated a memorandum of understanding for shared office spaced with the University Honor 

System. 

 

Director of the Center for Student Involvement & Leadership  
Millersville University, Millersville, Pennsylvania  

September 2004 – August 2012  

▪ Provided direct supervision for the following services and programs: Orientation, Greek Life, 

Leadership Development, Student Activities, and Student Organizations.    

▪ Supervised a staff of 12 (two assistant directors, one coordinator, one administrative assistant, 

one graduate assistant and seven students).  

▪ Directly managed and monitored university, auxiliary, and Student Senate allocated annual 

budgets totaling over $750,000.  

▪ Oversaw policy development, planning, and the overall coordination of over 130 student 

organizations through the implementation of organization registration, the creation of 

publications, and the development of training workshops.  

▪ Assisted Student Senate with policies and procedures related to the recognition of student 

organizations.  

▪ Oversaw the programming of annual campus events such as the Leadership Awards Banquet, 

SuperFest, Family Weekend, programming board spring concert, student organization fair, and 

the annual block party.  

November 2006 – March 2008  

▪ Assumed additional responsibilities during a period of transition within the Division of Student 

Affairs. 

▪ Provided direct supervision for the Wellness and Women’s Program.  

▪ Coordinated the campus Community Service Program, which served as a clearinghouse for 

volunteer opportunities.  

▪ Assisted work-study students in identifying community service work sites and securing 

employment outside of the university.  

 

Key Accomplishments 

▪ Chaired the university-wide Orientation Committee responsible for developing a new, 

comprehensive five day Fall Orientation Program, which was implemented Fall 2007. 

▪ Partnered with the Assistant to the President for Social Equity and Diversity in the development 

and implementation of the Collegiate Leadership Development Program (CLDP), a program 

designed to assist students of color during their transition to the university.  

▪ Responsible for the development and implementation of the Emerging and Seasoned Leaders 

Programs, which focused on a holistic approach to leadership development.  

85

Item 15.



Angela D. Simmons, pg. 4 

 

▪ Partnered with the Coordinator of the Women’s Center in the creation of an annual Women’s 

Leadership Retreat.   

▪ Responsible for the creation and implementation of a diversity training program for students 

participating in Fall New Student Orientation.  

▪ Partnered with the Associate Provost for Enrollment Management in the development of a 

leadership program for students participating in the Millersville Scholars Program, an initiative 

geared towards assisting at-risk students.  

▪ Worked with the Director of Pre-Collegiate Programs in the development and implementation of 

Millersville Concerned Women, a program for female students of color.  

▪ Served on the Student Memorial Center Renovation Committee, which provided input and made 

recommendations during the planning and design phases.  

▪ Served on the President’s Advisory Leadership Council, an assembly of key administrative, 

faculty, and staff leaders that fosters shared governance through its discussions of key issues on 

campus. 

▪ Appointed by the Vice President of Student Affairs and the Provost to serve on the Steering 

Committee for the Middle States Accreditation Self-Study, a University-wide committee charged 

with providing leadership for the Self-Study design and implementation.  
 

Assistant Dean of Students and Director of Greek Life  
Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida  

September 2001 – September 2004  

▪ Supervised all operations of the University Greek community comprised of 49 organizations with 

over 3800 students.  

▪ Hired, trained, supervised and evaluated Assistant Director and two Graduate Assistants.  

▪ Advised daily operations, budget creation and management, programming, crisis management, 

and policy enforcement of the Interfraternity Council, National Pan-Hellenic Council, Panhellenic 

Council, Multicultural Council, and Greek Board.  

▪ Served as the first responder to crisis situations within the Greek community.  

▪ Provided training, education, development, and support services for chapter presidents, council 

executive board members, and chapter advisors.  

▪ Served as a University liaison between alumni advisors, housing corporations, leadership 

consultants, and headquarters staff.  

▪ Met regularly with individual chapter presidents to assist with assessment of organizational 

needs, goal setting, and program development.  

▪ Selected, trained, and advised Interfraternity Council, National Pan-Hellenic Council, and 

Panhellenic Council Judicial Boards.  

▪ Collaborated with the Office of Student Rights and Responsibilities on all fraternity and sorority 

judicial issues.  

▪ Partnered with Environmental Health and Safety to coordinate annual fire inspections for 

fraternity and sorority chapter houses.  

▪ Supervised all formal and informal recruitment processes for men’s and women’s fraternities. 

▪ Negotiated various entertainment contracts and agreements for services on behalf on the 

governing councils.  

▪ Oversaw implementation of campus-wide 32-hour Dance Marathon.  

 

Key Accomplishments 

▪ Served as a member of the Dean of Students Leadership Team focused on providing leadership 

and vision for the department.  

▪ Researched, created, implemented, and served as an instructor for Emerging Leaders; a program 

for new members of fraternities and sororities.  

▪ Created a governing council for Multicultural fraternities and sororities.  
 

Assistant Director of Greek Life  
Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida  

May 1999 – September 2001  

▪ Planned and coordinated leadership training events such as Greek Leadership Conference and 

Greek Advance.  

86

Item 15.



Angela D. Simmons, pg. 5 

 

▪ Advised officers and members of Order of Omega, Greek Ambassadors, and GAMMA.  

▪ Advised officers and members of Greek Board in the planning of Greek Week and the Greek 

Awards Banquet.  

▪ Assisted fraternity and sorority scholarship chairs in developing long term goals.  

▪ Tracked fraternity and sorority grades and member statistics.  

▪ Supervised graduate interns.  
 

Assistant Director of Student Activities  
University of West Georgia, Carrollton, Georgia  

September 1994 - August 1997  

▪ Advised the Black Student Alliance and actively provided professional leadership and guidance to 

officers and various committees.  

▪ Coordinated Black History Month activities.  

▪ Developed and maintained the Black Cultural Resource Center.  

▪ Advised Panhellenic Council, Black Greek Council, and Gamma Sigma Alpha.  

▪ Coordinated the registration process for student organizations.  

▪ Served as a consultant to registered student organizations and their advisors.  

▪ Assisted student organizations and University departments in creating and implementing 

leadership development programs for student leaders.  

▪ Conducted “Diversity 101" workshops for student leaders.  

▪ Developed, implemented, and maintained campus-wide community service program.  

▪ Selected, trained, and supervised student workers in the production of identification cards.  

▪ Developed and revised all office publications.  

 

 

RELATED EXPERIENCE 
   

University Judicial Hearing Officer  
Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida  

January 2000 – September 2004  
 

Instructor, First Year Experience   
Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida  

Fall – 1999, 2001, 2002, 2003 & Summer 2004  
 

Graduate Assistant, Hardee Center for Women in Higher Education   
Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida  

August 1997 – May 1999  
 

 

SELECTED UNIVERSITY COMMITTEES 
 

▪ Co-Chair, Student Affairs Policy Review Committee, Virginia Tech 

▪ Co-Chair, Curiosity Aspiration Committee, Virginia Tech 

▪ Member, Creativity and Innovation Advisory Board, Virginia Tech 

▪ Member, NPHC Vision and Planning Committee, Virginia Tech 

▪ Chair, Student Affairs Professional Development Committee, Millersville University  

▪ Member, President’s Commission on the Status of Women, Millersville University  

▪ Member, Council for Institutional Effectiveness & Accountability, Millersville University  

▪ Member, Institutional Identity Committee, Millersville University  

▪ Member, Alcohol and Other Drugs Steering Committee, Millersville University  

▪ Member, Student Memorial Center Renovation Committee, Millersville University  

▪ Chair, Dean of Students Professional Development Committee, Florida State University   

▪ Member, University-Wide Public Safety Committee, Florida State University  
 

 

 

87

Item 15.



Angela D. Simmons, pg. 6 

 

SELECTED PROFESSIONAL & COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
 

▪ Faculty Member, ACPA Mid-Level Management Institute 

▪ Cluster Facilitator, LeaderShape, Allerton Conference Center  

▪ Faculty Member, ASCA Gehring Academy for Student Conduct Administration 

▪ Facilitator, Undergraduate Interfraternity Institute  

▪ Planning Committee, Faculty Women of Color in the Academy Conference 

▪ ACPA Institute for Aspiring Senior Student Affairs Officers 

▪ ACPA Mid-Level Management Institute 

▪ Introduction to Restorative Practices & Using Circles Effectively, International Institute for Restorative 

Practices 

▪ StrengthsQuest Educator Seminar 

▪ ACPA Cultural Study Tour, Ghana  

▪ Management Academy, University Organizational and Professional Development, Virginia Tech 

▪ Women’s Leadership & Mentoring Program, Virginia Tech 

▪ Member, ACPA Commission for Spirituality, Faith, Religion and Meaning 

▪ Member, Student Affairs Administrators in Higher Education - NASPA  

▪ Member, American College Personnel Association – ACPA 

▪ Mentor, ACPA Coalition for Women's Identities 

▪ Mentor, Women’s Leadership & Mentoring Program, Virginia Tech 

▪ Board of Directors, Women’s Resource Center of the New River Valley 

▪ Board or Directors, Urban League of Lancaster County 

88

Item 15.


	Top
	Item 5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	11.01.21 Executive

	Item 7.	Discussion of 2022 Penny Sales Tax Referendum
	2022 

	Item 8.	Approval of ARPA Project List Recommendations
	AIS - Approval of ARPA Project Recommendations
	Rath_Beaufort County ARPA Projects
	addons title page
	12.6 HRC ARPA Presentation - Final

	Item 9.	Redistricting Ordinance
	addons title page
	Binder1

	Item 10.	Flood Mitigation Policy
	AIS - Resolution Flood Mitigation Policy 11-4-21
	Resolution Flood Mitigation Policy 12-3-21

	Item 11.	Flood Mitigation Program
	AIS - Resolution for Flood Mitigation Program
	Resolution Finance for Flood Mitigation Program 12-3-21

	Item 13.	REQUEST TO PURCHASE CAT MODEL 120 MOTORGRADER
	Beaufort County 120 Motorgrader Inventory Unit 11-5-21
	Beaufort County 120 sales agreement 11-5-21

	Item 14.	APPOINTMENT OF CAROLYN M. BANNER, Ph.D. TO BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	AIS - BMH 12.06.21 Banner

	Item 15.	APPOINTMENT OF ANGELA D. SIMMONS, Ph.D. TO BEAUFORT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	AIS - BMH 12.06.21 SIMMONS

	Bottom

